
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Commissioning 
 

PO Box 1720 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 9EL 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Yolande Myers 
 

Email: yolande.myers@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Thursday 7 July 2022 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee will meet in the Reception 
Room - Town Hall, Huddersfield at 10.00 am on Friday 15 July 2022. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee members are:- 
 

 
When a Corporate Governance and Audit Committee member cannot be at the meeting 
another member can attend in their place from the list below:- 
 

Substitutes Panel 
 
Conservative 
B Armer 
A Gregg 
V Lees-Hamilton 
R Smith 
M Thompson

Labour 
S Hall 
M Kaushik 
F Perry 
M Sokhal  
E Firth 
T Hawkins 

Liberal Democrat 
A Munro 
PA Davies 
A Marchington 
A Pinnock 
     

       
 

Ex Officio Members 
Councillor Paul Davies - Cabinet Member, Resources 
Councillor Jo Lawson - Chair of Standards Committee 
Councillor Elizabeth Smaje - Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  
 

Member 
Councillor Yusra Hussain (Chair) 
Councillor Ammar Anwar 
Councillor Kath Pinnock 
Councillor Harry McCarthy 
Councillor Elizabeth Reynolds 
Councillor Joshua Sheard 
Councillor John Taylor 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
To receive any apologies for absence, or details of substitutions to 
the Committee membership. 
 

 
 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 17 
June 2022. 
 

 
 

1 - 4 

3:   Declarations of Interest 
 
Committee Members will be asked to advise if there are any items 
on the Agenda in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
which would prevent them from participating in any discussion or 
vote on an item, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

5 - 6 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most agenda items will be considered in public session, however, it 
shall be advised whether Cabinet will consider any matters in 
private, by virtue of the reports containing information which falls 
within a category of exempt information as contained at Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
 

 

5:   Deputations/Petitions 
 
The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people 
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 

 



 

 

Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation.   
 
 

 
 

6:   Public Question Time 
 
The Committee will hear any questions from the general public. 
 

 
 

 

7:   Democracy Commission Update 
 
To receive a verbal update on the work of the Democracy 
Commission. 
 
Contact: Leigh Webb, Governance Manager 
 

 
 

 

8:   Kirklees response to local audit framework consultation 
 
A verbal update to consider Kirklees response to the Government’s 
local audit framework technical consultation. 
 
Contact: Martin Dearnley, Head of Risk 
 
 

 
 

 

9:   Proposed revisions to the terms of reference for the 
Kirklees Health & Wellbeing Board (Reference to 
Council) 
 
To consider proposed revisions to the Terms of Reference for the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Contact: Phil Longworth, Senior Manager – Integrated Support 
Kirklees Council 
 

 
 

7 - 20 

10:   Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 
Annual Report 
 
To receive an overview of the work of the Emergency Planning 
Team. 
 
Contact: Sean Westerby, Corporate Safety and Resilience Manager 
 

21 - 32 



 

 

 
 

11:   Report of the Members’ Allowances Independent Review 
Panel (Reference to Council) 
 
To consider Considers the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 
2022/23. 
 
Contact: Samantha Lawton, Head of Governance 
 

 
 

33 - 66 

12:   Quarterly Report of Internal Audit Q1 2022/23 April 2022 
TO June 2022 
 
To receive information relating to internal audit work in Quarter 1 of 
2022/23. 
 
Contact: Martin Dearnley, Head of Risk 
 

 
 

67 - 70 

13:   Exclusion of the Public 
 
To resolve that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 
 

 

14:   Quarterly Report of Internal Audit Q1 2022/23 April 2022 
TO June 2022 
 
Exempt appendix in relation to agenda item 12. 
 

 
 

71 - 82 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Yolande Myers  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Friday 17th June 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Yusra Hussain (Chair) 
 Councillor Ammar Anwar 

Councillor Paola Davies 
Councillor Harry McCarthy 
Councillor Elizabeth Reynolds 
Councillor Joshua Sheard 

  
Apologies: Councillor John Taylor 

Councillor Paul Davies (ex-Officio) 
 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Paul Davies and Cllr 
John Taylor.  Councillor Paola Davies substituted for Councillor Kath Pinnock. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2022 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

4 Admission of the Public 
It was noted that all agenda items would be considered in public session. 
 

5 Deputations/Petitions 
There were no deputations or petitions received. 
 

6 Public Question Time 
No questions were asked. 
 

7 Annual Report on Treasury Management 2021/22 
The Committee received the annual report on Treasury Management activities for 
the previous financial year. The report reviewed borrowing and investment 
performance. 
 
Investments averaged £78.9 million and were largely deposited in instant access 
accounts earning an average interest rate of 0.12%.  Total external borrowing at 31 
March 2022 increased by £43.1 million to £468.9 million (£425.8 million as at 31 
March 2021). The Council took £50 million new Government long term loans from 
the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and an additional £20 million Local Authority 
medium term loans (2-3 years). Temporary borrowing decreased for the year by 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Corporate Governance and Audit Committee -  17 June 2022 
 

2 
 

£20.0 million to £21.5 million (£41.5 million 31st March 2021). The majority of 
borrowing was on fixed rate terms and the average long-term borrowing rate for 
2021/22 relating to all long-term debt on the balance sheet was 3.84%. Short-term 
borrowing rates averaged 0.49%. 
 
Following approval within the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy there was a 
further increase in the un-winding in the General Fund MRP for 2021/22. The 
maximum amount of un-wind in any one year cannot be more than the overall 
annual MRP calculation, as otherwise the Council would end up in a negative MRP 
position, which is not allowable under accounting rules. The calculation estimated 
for 2021/22 was £13.7 million. The actual MRP calculation for 2021/22 was £15.6 
million and hence the maximum unwind allowable. However, in 2021/22 the actual 
unwind was in-line with the budget at £13.7 million 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the treasury management performance as 
set out in this report.  
 

8 External Audit Plan 
The Committee received the External Audit Report, for year end 31 March 2022, as 
submitted by Grant Thornton.   
 
The report advised that the Council had set a balanced budget for 2021/22 and 
2022/23 although Grant Thornton noted funding pressures existed into the medium 
term financial plan which would require addressing. 
 
The Committee noted that the Covid-19 pandemic continued to have a significant 
impact on the Council, and during 2021/22 the Council had been focused on 
response and recovery. The report advised that the Council has had to work 
differently at all levels to be able to deliver all its required services effectively. The 
Council had continued to receive Covid-19 related grant funding from central 
government for distribution to businesses and residents. 
 
The Committee was advised that the significant risks identified were (i) Management 
override of controls (ii) Valuation of land and buildings, council dwellings and 
investment property and (iii) Valuation of the pension fund net liability. 
 
RESOLVED – That the External Audit Findings Report, for Year end March 2022, 
be received and noted. 
 

9 Government response to local audit framework: technical consultation 
The Committee received a report which outlined the outcomes from a consultation 
on local audit matters.   
 
The report advised that the government response to consultation included 
information about how the Audit Reporting & Governance Authority would operate in 
relation to local authority external auditing and indicated an intention to create a 
statutory obligation for local authorities to have an Audit Committee, including an 
independent member. 
 

Page 2



Corporate Governance and Audit Committee -  17 June 2022 
 

3 
 

The Committee noted that there was no need for any action at this stage.  The exact 
contents of any legislation and or regulations, statutory guidance, or guidance may 
require or suggest changes to the role of the committee and its membership at 
some point in the future. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

1) That the Committee note the outcome of the consultation. 
2) That a further report be considered at the next meeting of the Committee 

outlining (i) details of any clarification following the consultation (ii) the 
recruitment and governance process of appointing a lay person with 
timescales. 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
N

am
e 

of
 C

ou
nc

ill
or

 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 6



 
 
Name of meeting:  Corporate Governance & Audit (CGA)  
 
Date:    15 July 2022 
  
Title of report:   Proposed revisions to the terms of reference for the Kirklees 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
  
Purpose of report:  The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the proposed 
revisions to the Terms of Reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?  

No 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports?)  

No 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

N/A 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
(Finance)? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Legal Governance and Commissioning? 

Richard Parry, Strategic Director for Adults and 
Health 
 
Eamonn Croston, 29th June 2022 
 
 
Julie Muscroft, 29th June 2022 

Cabinet member portfolio Cllr Musarrat Khan - Health and Social Care 
 

 
Electoral wards affected:  N/A  
 
Ward councillors consulted: N/A 
 
Public or private:   PUBLIC   
 
(Have you considered GDPR?)  
 
This report contains no information that falls within the scope of the General 
Data Protection Regulation 
 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 9

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


1. Summary  
 

In accordance with The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing 
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, if the Council wishes to alter the 
voting rights and membership the board must first be consulted on any proposed 
amendments.   
 
On the 30th June 2022 the Health and Wellbeing Board, considered and endorsed 
the proposed amendments to the terms of reference. 
 

2. Information required to take a decision 
 

2.1 The national, regional, and local context the Board is operating within has undergone 
significant changes with the passing of the Health and Care Act 2022. The Act 
provides a new legislative framework to facilitate greater collaboration within the NHS 
and between the NHS, local government, and other partners, and to support the 
recovery from the pandemic. 

 
2.2 Health and Wellbeing Boards will remain in place and will continue to have an 

important responsibility at a local/place-based level to bring local partners together, 
as well as developing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and a Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy, which both HWBs and ICSs will have to have regard to. 

 
 The key provisions of the Act that impact on the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) 

are:  

• Establishment of Integrated Care Boards (ICB) and abolition of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCG), with effect from the 1st July 2022. The West 
Yorkshire ICB will cover Kirklees, Calderdale, Wakefield, Bradford and Leeds.  

• The HWB in each local authority area is responsible for preparing a JSNA and 
a joint health and wellbeing strategy for their populations on behalf of their local 
authority and, previously their CCG. The Act transfers the responsibilities of 
CCGs to ICBs. 

• ICBs must have regard to relevant joint strategic needs assessments, the 
integrated care strategy for the local area and the joint local health and 
wellbeing strategy. 

• ICBs must involve each relevant health and wellbeing board in preparing or 
revising its forward plan setting out how they propose to exercise their 
functions, including proposals for health services, and action on the ICB’s 
general duties and financial duties. 

• NHS England must conduct a performance assessment and publish a report 
on each ICB covering every financial year. In doing this they must consult each 
relevant HWB on its views on what the ICB has done to implement relevant 
joint local health and wellbeing strategies.      
    

2.3 The West Yorkshire Health and Care Partnership is now established as the 
‘Integrated Care System’ and the Partnership Board has been meeting formally since 
June 2019. The Council is represented by Cllr Pandor and Cllr Kendrick for 2022/23. 

 
2.4 The West Yorkshire ICB will establish 5 place-based Committees, including one for 

Kirklees. The ICB will delegate significant The ICB Constitution (link) ‘creates the 
framework for the ICB to delegate much decision-making authority and resources to 

Page 8

https://www.wypartnership.co.uk/application/files/1716/4560/3961/11-22_West_Yorkshire_Integrated_Care_Board_-_constitution_and_governance.pdf


our places’. The Council’s Chief Executive will be a member of the Kirklees ICB 
‘place-based’ Committee. 
 

2.3 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 set out the core membership that health and 
wellbeing boards must include:  

 

• at least one councillor from the relevant council 

• the director of adult social services 

• the director of children’s services  

• the director of public health 

• a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation 

• a representative of each relevant clinical commissioning group (CCG)  

• any other members considered appropriate by the council 
 

2.4 The current membership as set out in the Terms of Reference was amended in May 
2021 (link). Those changes to membership reflected the shift to a much more 
collaborative culture which is at the core of both the Kirklees Health and Wellbeing 
Plan and the NHS Long Term Plan. The report also highlighted other policy 
changes that have now been enshrined in the Health and Care Act 2022: 

• ‘primacy of place’ which the White Paper recognised as ‘most usually aligned 
with local authority boundaries’ 

• ‘working together to integrate care’ - embedding 2 forms of integration 
o within the NHS to remove some of the cumbersome boundaries to 

collaboration and to make working together an organising principle 
o greater collaboration between the NHS and local government, as well as 

wider delivery partners, to deliver improved outcomes to health and wellbeing 
for local people. 

 
3. Proposals 
 
3.1 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee and Council are asked to consider and 

agree the proposed revision to the Terms of Reference for 2021-22, specifically;  

• Amending the membership of the Board to  
o reflect the creation of the Kirklees ICB Committee and the abolition of 

Kirklees CCG. The ICB representatives will be the Independent Chair and 
the Accountable Officer.  

o include a nominated representatives from a wider range of significant 
partners, including General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Social Care, 
West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service, the third sector, housing, schools, 
and the University of Huddersfield.  

• Amending the Terms of Reference to  
o Reflect the new governance structures created by the Health and Care Act 
o Clarify the distinct role of the Board in relation to these new structures 
o Ensure the Board is actively engaged with the new structures. 

 
Appendix 1 is the current version with the proposed changes marked with 
strikethrough text to be deleted, blue text to be added. 
Appendix 2 is the proposed new version. 

 
 
 
 

Page 9

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/documents/s41032/Revised%20TOR%20HWB%20CGA%20and%20Council%202021.pdf


4. Implications for the Council 
 

4.1 Working with People 
The extension of the membership will enable partners with a wider range of 
contacts with people who live, work and study in Kirklees to be reflected in the 
Board’s work. 

 
4.2 Working with Partners 

The existing partnership arrangements between the council and partners will be 
strengthened and extended by including a wider range of partners as full members 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

4.3 Place Based Working  
All the partners on the Board are committed to strengthening our place-based 
working arrangements. The Council has recently appointed 9 Lead Councillors for 
Primary Care Networks and Local Health Improvement. 
It is anticipated that place-based working will be a core aspect of the refreshed Kirklees 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy which is due later this year. 
 

4.4 Climate Change and Air Quality 
Whilst the revised Terms of Reference do not specifically reference climate change 
and air quality it is anticipated that climate change will be a core aspect of the 
refreshed Kirklees Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy which is due later this year. 
 

4.5 Improving outcomes for children 
 The Board has a specific responsibility to provide oversight of the Children and 
Young Peoples partnership and plan.  The inclusion of representatives from schools 
and the University and making explicit the links with the Children’s Safeguarding 
Partnership will also increase the focus of the Board on improving outcomes for 
children. 

 
4.6 Other (eg Legal/Financial or Human Resources)  
 

The Board has no decision taking responsibilities for service provision or finance. 
However, the Board will be represented on the Kirklees Integrated Care Board 
Committee that will have delegated powers to allocate funding and change service 
provision. 

 
4.7 Financial Implications for the Population 

There are no direct financial implications for the population.  

5. Consultees and their opinions 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board endorsed the revisions to the terms of reference at 
the meeting held on the 30th June 2022. 
 

6. Next steps and timelines 
 

Following consideration by Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, on the                
15th July 2022, the report will progress to Full Council on 7th September 2022 for 
approval. 

 

Page 10



 
7. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

That the revised Terms of Reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board be 
approved and referred to Full Council for final approval. 
 
The revised Terms of Reference will ensure that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
can meet its statutory obligations and fulfil the local and national policy commitment 
to partnership based approaches to improving health and wellbeing. 
 

9. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations 
 Not applicable 
 
10. Contact officer(s)  
 
 Phil Longworth, Senior Manager – Integrated Support Kirklees Council 
 Phil.longworth@kirklees.gov.uk 
 Tel: 01484 221000 
 

Jenny Bryce-Chan, Principal Governance Officer 
Jenny.bryce-chan@kirklees.gov.uk 
Tel: 01484 221000 
 

11. Background Papers and History of Decisions 
 
12. Service Director responsible   
 

 Julie Muscroft, Service Director, Legal Governance and Commissioning 
 

Page 11

mailto:Phil.longworth@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:Jenny.bryce-chan@kirklees.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (original with Tracked changes) 

Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board 
Membership and Terms of Reference 
 
1. Membership  

 Membership of the Board includes voting and non-voting members as set out below: 
  
Voting members  
• Three Members of Kirklees Council’s Cabinet, one of whom may be the Leader  
• One Senior Councillor from the main opposition group   
• One Councillor from a political group other than the administration and main opposition group  
• Director for Children Services (including as representative of the Children & Young Peoples 

Partnership) 
• Director for Public Health  
• Director of Adult Social Care  
• One representative of local Kirklees Healthwatch  
• Three representatives of Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group   
• Independent Chair (or Member) of the Kirklees Integrated Care Board Committee 
• Kirklees (ICB) Accountable Officer/Place-based Lead  
• One representative of Kirklees Integrated Health and Care Leadership Board  
Non-voting members  
• Chief Executive Kirklees Council    
• Representative of NHS England  

 
Nominated representative of significant partners:  
• Kirklees Primary Care Networks, which could come from one of the GP Federations acting 

on their behalf 
• General Practice 
• Community Pharmacy 
• Social Care providers (nominated by Kirklees Care Association) 
• Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust   
• Calderdale and Huddersfield Foundation Trust  
• South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust    
• Current community health provider Locala 
• West Yorkshire Police 
• West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
• Third Sector (nominated by Third Sector Leaders) 
• Schools 
• University of Huddersfield 
• Housing providers 

 
Invited observers: 
• Representative of Kirklees Council Overview and Scrutiny  

 
The Council will appoint a Chair at the start of each Municipal Year.  
The Board can appoint a Deputy Chair from its members at the first meeting of the Board in each 
municipal year. The Deputy Chair will normally be from a partner organisation other than the 
Council. 
 
 
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (original with Tracked changes) 

2. Terms of Reference  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is a statutory Committee of the Council bringing together the 
NHS, the Council and partners to:   
 
The Board is a critical part of the governance structures for health and wellbeing across Kirklees 
and West Yorkshire.  
a) Improve the health and wellbeing of the people in their area, reduce health inequalities and 

promote the integration of services.  

It is the main strategic partnership for Kirklees that brings together the NHS, the Council and 
partners to  

• set the strategic direction for improving the health and wellbeing of the people who live, work 
and study in Kirklees 

• reduce health inequalities, and  
• promote co-operation and integration of services.  
 
The Board will achieve this through1: 

Understanding Needs and Assets 

a) Developing, publishing and owning the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Kirklees 
(JSNA) (which is known locally as the Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment (KJSA)) to inform 
local planning, commissioning and delivery of services and meet the legal responsibilities of 
Kirklees Council and the Clinical Commissioning Groups.   

b) Publishing and maintaining a statement of needs for pharmaceutical services (the 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment) across the Kirklees area.  

Setting out a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

c) Developing, publishing and owning the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Kirklees, 
based on the KJSA and other local intelligence, to provide the overarching framework for 
planning, commissioning and delivery of services.     

Promoting co-operation and integration 

d) Provide the structure for overseeing local and regional planning and accountabilities for health 
and wellbeing related services and interventions and the development of sustainable integrated 
health and social care systems including children and young people’s partnership 
arrangements.  

e) Promoting co-operation and integration and across the Council, NHS, social care, public 
health and other bodies in the planning, commissioning and delivery of services to improve the 
wellbeing of the whole population of Kirklees, including as part of regional working.    

f) Establishing and maintaining links and active co-operation with the West Yorkshire Integrated 
Care Partnership, the West Yorkshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) and the Kirklees Place-
based subcommittee of the ICB, and other regional working structures. 

Overseeing delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
g) Assuring plans and delivery of key partnerships (eg Kirklees Health and Care Partnership) and 

programmes (eg the Kirklees Children and Young Peoples Plan), including that they have 
taken sufficient account of the Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment, the Kirklees Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy, and the commitment to co-operation and integration. 

 
1 The Boards statutory functions are shown in bold 

Page 14



Appendix 1 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (original with Tracked changes) 

h) Provide strategic leadership and oversight of key programmes, such as the Kirklees Health and 
Wellbeing Plan, Better Care Fund, including the Children & Young Peoples Plan and to 
encourage use of associated pooled fund arrangements where appropriate.   

i) Ensure the involvement and engagement of service users, patients and the wider public in 
planning, commissioning and delivery of services to improve the wellbeing of the whole 
population of Kirklees.   

j) Provide assurance that the commissioning and delivery of plans of partners have taken 
sufficient account of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment.   

k) Ensure that the Council’s statutory duties in relation to health protection arrangements and 
plans are delivered though the work of its sub-committee, the Kirklees Health Protection Board.     

l) Exercise any other functions of the Council delegated to the Board by the Council excluding 
health scrutiny functions.  

 
To facilitate co-ordination and integration the Chair, or their nominee, will: 

• represent the Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board at the West Yorkshire Integrated Care 
Partnership 

• attend the formal meetings of the Kirklees Integrated Care Board Committee  

• participate in the formal Kirklees health and care system assurance process 

• liaise with the Chairs of the Children’s Safeguarding Partnership, Adult Safeguarding Board 
and other formal partnership bodies in Kirklees as required. 

 
3. Voting Rights  

See membership list  
All members of the Board are entitled to vote.  
Decisions will be taken by majority vote. 
The Chair has the casting vote. 
 
In accordance with The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, if the Council’s wishes to alter the voting rights and membership the 
board must first be consulted on any proposed amendments.    
  
4. Substitute Members  

Board Members can send a substitute to represent them should they be unable to attend and if 
appropriate cast their vote.    
  
5. Quorum  

The quorum for the board will be attendance by 50% of the accountable and 50% one third of the 
membership. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (proposed new version) 

Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board 

Membership and Terms of Reference 
 
1. Membership  

• Three Members of Kirklees Council’s Cabinet, one of whom may be the Leader  

• One Senior Councillor from the main opposition group   

• One Councillor from a political group other than the administration and main opposition group  

• Director for Children Services (including as representative of the Children & Young Peoples 

Partnership) 

• Director for Public Health  

• Director of Adult Social Care  

• One representative of local Kirklees Healthwatch  

• Independent Chair (or Member) of the Kirklees Integrated Care Board Committee 

• Kirklees (ICB) Accountable Officer/Place-based Lead  

• Chief Executive Kirklees Council    

• Representative of NHS England  

 

Nominated representative of significant partners:  

• General Practice 

• Community Pharmacy 

• Social Care providers (nominated by Kirklees Care Association) 

• Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust   

• Calderdale and Huddersfield Foundation Trust  

• South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust    

• Locala 

• West Yorkshire Police 

• West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 

• Third Sector (nominated by Third Sector Leaders) 

• Schools 

• University of Huddersfield 

• Housing providers 

 

Invited observers: 

• Representative of Kirklees Council Overview and Scrutiny  

 

The Council will appoint a Chair at the start of each Municipal Year.  

The Board can appoint a Deputy Chair from its members at the first meeting of the Board in each 

municipal year. The Deputy Chair will normally be from a partner organisation other than the 

Council. 

 
 
 
  

Page 17



Appendix 2 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (proposed new version) 

2. Terms of Reference  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is a statutory Committee of the Council. 

 
The Board is a critical part of the governance structures for health and wellbeing across Kirklees 
and West Yorkshire.  

It is the main strategic partnership for Kirklees that brings together the NHS, the Council and 
partners to  

• set the strategic direction for improving the health and wellbeing of the people who live, work 
and study in Kirklees 

• reduce health inequalities, and  

• promote co-operation and integration of services.  
 
The Board will achieve this through1: 

Understanding Needs and Assets 

a) Developing, publishing and owning the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Kirklees 

(JSNA) (which is known locally as the Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment (KJSA)) to inform 

local planning, commissioning and delivery of services.   

b) Publishing and maintaining a statement of needs for pharmaceutical services (the 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment) across the Kirklees area.  

Setting out a Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

c) Developing, publishing and owning the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Kirklees, 

based on the KJSA and other local intelligence, to provide the overarching framework for 

planning, commissioning and delivery of services.     

Promoting co-operation and integration 

d) Promoting co-operation and integration and across the Council, NHS, social care, public 

health and other bodies in the planning, commissioning and delivery of services to improve the 

wellbeing.    

e) Establishing and maintaining links and active co-operation with the West Yorkshire Integrated 

Care Partnership, the West Yorkshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) and the Kirklees Place-

based subcommittee of the ICB, and other regional working structures. 

Overseeing delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

f) Assuring plans and delivery of key partnerships (eg Kirklees Health and Care Partnership) and 

programmes (eg the Kirklees Children and Young Peoples Plan), including that they have 

taken sufficient account of the Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment, the Kirklees Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy, and the commitment to co-operation and integration. 

g) Ensure that the Council’s statutory duties in relation to health protection arrangements and 

plans are delivered though the work of its sub-committee, the Kirklees Health Protection Board.     

h) Exercise any other functions of the Council delegated to the Board by the Council excluding 

health scrutiny functions.  

  

 
1 The Boards statutory functions are shown in bold 

Page 18



Appendix 2 DRAFT Revised ToR for 2022-23 (proposed new version) 

 

To facilitate co-ordination and integration the Chair, or their nominee, will: 

• represent the Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board at the West Yorkshire Integrated Care 
Partnership 

• attend the formal meetings of the Kirklees Integrated Care Board Committee  

• participate in the formal Kirklees health and care system assurance process 

• liaise with the Chairs of the Children’s Safeguarding Partnership, Adult Safeguarding Board 
and other formal partnership bodies in Kirklees as required. 

 

3. Voting Rights  

All members of the Board are entitled to vote.  

Decisions will be taken by majority vote. 

The Chair has the casting vote. 

 

In accordance with The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, if the Council’s wishes to alter the voting rights and membership the 
board must first be consulted on any proposed amendments.    
  

4. Substitute Members  

Board Members can send a substitute to represent them should they be unable to attend and if 
appropriate cast their vote.    
  

5. Quorum  

The quorum for the board will be attendance by one third of the membership. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Name of meeting: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Date: July 2022 

Title of report: Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Annual 
Report 

Purpose of report: To provide the committee with an overview of the work of the 
Emergency Planning Team.  

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?   

Not Applicable 

 

 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s 
Forward Plan (key decisions and private 
reports)? 
 

No 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

Yes 

 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Legal Governance and 
Commissioning? 
 

Rachel Spencer-Henshall 29.06.22 

Eamonn Croston 28.06.22 

 
Julie Muscroft 28.06.22 

Cabinet member portfolio Mussarat Khan 

 

Electoral wards affected: None 

Ward councillors consulted: None 

Public or private: Public 

Has GDPR been considered? Yes 

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 10

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


Summary 
 
The emergency planning and business continuity annual report provides a snapshot 
of the work of the Emergency Planning Team and provides assurance to the 
committee that we are compliant with the core duties in the Civil Contingencies Act. 
 

 
1. Information required to take a decision 

 
N/A 
 

2. Implications for the Council 

3.1 Working with People 

N/A 

3.2 Working with Partners 

N/A 

2.3 Place Based Working 

N/A 

2.4 Climate Change and Air Quality 
 
N/A 
 

2.5 Improving outcomes for children 

N/A 

2.6 Financial Implications for the people living or working in Kirklees 

N/A 

2.7 Other (eg Legal/Financial or Human Resources) Consultees and their 
opinions 
 
N/A 
 

3. Next steps and timelines 
 
N/A 
 

4. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

 

Page 22



Members are asked to discuss the report at the forthcoming Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee meeting on 15 July 2022 and ask questions 
relating to the content of the report.  

 
5. Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 

 
N/A 

 
6. Contact officer  

 
Sean Westerby 

 
Corporate Safety and Resilience Manager 

Tel 01484 221000  

E-mail sean.westerby@kirklees.gov.uk  

 
7. Background Papers and History of Decisions 

 
Previous business continuity reports 
 

8. Service Director responsible  
 
Rachel Spencer-Henshall, Strategic Director Corporate Strategy, Commissioning 
and Public Health 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

Incident 
Response 

44 
Incidents responded 

to. 

Training and 
Exercises 

12 
Training sessions 

and exercises 
planned and 
facilitated. 

Hazard 
Warnings 

124 
New hazards 

entered on the 
database. 

Counter 
Terrorism 

Awareness  

1000+ 
People completing 

the Counter 
Terrorism package. 

 

Advice to 
Schools 

1500+ 
Responded to over 
1500 calls/emails 

from schools/other 
settings relating to 

Covid-19 and 
emergency planning 

Educational 
Visits 

193 
Educational visits 

approved. 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
This report provides an overview of resilience matters pertinent to the Council. 
The report covers the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

 

PERFORMANCE HEADLINES 
NB. DURING 2021-22 THE EMERGENCY PLANNING TEAM WAS RESPONDING TO COVID-19 SO MUCH OF THE ROUTINE WORK HAD TO BE PUT ON HOLD. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Including Covid-19, 
flooding, storms, 

building fires, utility 
failures, etc. 

Including cyber 
exercise, Resilience 

Direct, recovery 
exercise, London 

Bridge exercise, etc. 

Platform for sharing 
information on 

potential hazards. 

Awareness raising 
training. 

Schools and other 
settings provided 
with Covid-19 and 

emergency planning 
advice and support 
(in and out of hours 

support). 

Schools continue to 
run safe off-site 

educational visits. 

P
age 25

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

KIRKLEES LOCAL CONTEXT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

• Reviewed the Kirklees Risk assessments in line with the National Security Risk Assessment. 

• Worked with partners to review and update the West Yorkshire risk assessments and the WY 
Community Risk Register. 

• Reviewed and updated numerous risk assessments in relation to Covid-19. 

• Supporting the Climate Adaptation project being rolled out within the Council to assess our Kirklees wide 
risks to climate change and how these can be addressed. 

CO-OPERATION 

• Worked with Council Services and partners in the response to and recovery from Covid-19, tactically 
leading on several workstream areas, including excess deaths, surge testing and business continuity.  

• Assisted school with educational visit advice, signing off trips, and provided EVC training. 

• Continued to support Locala as per the EPPR service contract in place. 

• Arranged and facilitated the Pre-Winter Assurance Meeting (Council and local partners). 

• Worked with WYRF during the response to Covid-19, reviewed/developed of multi-agency plans, etc. 

• Arranged and facilitated the initial arrangements to support roll out of the new Kirklees wide response 
to the upcoming Protect Duty and to support the PALs pilot programme. 

• Worked with WYRF reviewing and developing of multi-agency plans, etc. 

• Worked with Council services and multi-agency partners in the response to and recovery from a wide 
range of emergencies, 24/7. 

CORE 
DUTY 

02 

CORE 
DUTY 

01 

P
age 26

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORE 
DUTY 

03 

INFORMATION SHARING 

• Tactically led Covid-19 business continuity response and recovery. 

• Active use of Resilience Direct to share information during incident response and in the planning stage. 

• Coordination and facilitation of Kirklees Emergency Planning Group meetings to share information 
around risks and planning for emergencies across key Kirklees responders. 

• Reviewed and circulated plans and policies relating to emergency planning, business continuity and 
school offsite visits. 

CORE 
DUTY 

04 

EMERGENCY PLANNING 
• Continued to assist in the Council’s response to Covid-19, including business continuity, PPE 

requirements and testing. 

• Responded to various incidents, including severe weather events, fires, power outages, fuel issues, etc. 

• Responded to Operation Forth Bridge (Death of the Duke of Edinburgh). 

• Provided assistance and expertise for numerous events within Kirklees, such as the Batley and Spen Bi 
Election, Remembrance Sunday, etc. 

• EPRR Assurance submitted with Substantial Compliance. 

• Reviewed and updated several emergency plans to ensure they are current (Major Incident Plan and 
associated chapters). 

• Ran and attended various exercises to test Council, and partners procedures (EPRR Exercise, Resilience 
Direct Exercise, Recovery Exercise, COMAH Exercises, business continuity exercises, plan specific 
exercise etc.). These exercises provide assurance that the plans are fit for purpose and staff are 
confident in their response role to an emergency and/or business disruption.  

• Delivered several training sessions to Council Officers and partners on themes including Resilience 
Direct, counter terrorism, evacuation, emergency planning for schools, school governor’s role in 
emergency planning, lockdown, business continuity, flood spotters, educational visits, etc.  

• Prepared and delivered Emergency Planning lessons to students at Kirklees College. 

P
age 27

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT 

• Continue to tactically advise and support the Corporate Business Continuity Team and facilitate its 
processes (such as the monthly resilience reporting process that collates information around service 
delivery and pressures across the organisation). 

• Continued to advise and assist Council Teams and partner organisations to write, review, maintain, 
train, exercise and activate their Business Continuity Plans and arrangements.  

• Reviewed the council’s business continuity programme to include Covid learning. The revised 
programme will be rolled out late summer 2022 and will include shorter plans, organisation wide 
exercises, an electronic database of critical activities and the resources required to support them, and 
the use of a dashboard that will allow the Councils senior leaders to maintain an oversight of service 
delivery and pressures across the entire organisation. 

• Provided business continuity advice and assistance to services and partners on a range business 
disruptions, including Covid 19. 

CORE 
DUTY 

05 

• Worked with Safer Kirklees to identified a number of reception centres which could be utilised for a 
Human Trafficking operation. Established a procedure for partners to request the use of these centres. 

• Coordinated a project to look at Hostile Vehicle Mitigation options for key high-risk sites in Kirklees. 

• Drone training completed by the Team. All are now qualified Drone pilots with access to a drone to 
support local and wider multi-agency requirements for such a resource. 

• Debriefed incidents that required an enhanced response ( Storms Dudley, Eunice and Franklin, 
Operation Forth Bridge, fuel plan activation, etc.) 

P
age 28

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORE 
DUTY 

06 

COMMUNICATING WITH THE PUBLIC 

• Led the door knocking surge testing operation in Kirklees during Covid 19, disseminating test kits and 
passing on messages around themes including infection control and vaccination. 

• Worked with the Council and partners communication teams to ensure timely and appropriate 
messaging was cascaded during emergencies and business disruptions. 

• Used Kirklees Emergency Alert to warn and inform during emergencies.  

• Delivered resilience and emergency planning lessons to educational establishments.  

• Reviewed the emergency planning pages on the public facing Kirklees website, and on the intranet.  

• Developed a cascade contact list to share information relating to preparedness for terrorism.  
 

CORE 
DUTY 

07 

ADVICE TO BUSINESSES 
• Continued to promote Kirklees Emergency Alert across the district. This service provides a text message 

to warn and inform businesses of emergencies that are happening in their area. 

• Continued to support targeted testing within high-risk businesses. Then supported the eventual stand 
down of this process, reporting on its outcomes at stand down. 

• Provided business continuity advice to businesses during Covid. 

• Arranged for Mobile Testing Units to be set up when Covid-19 outbreaks at businesses were identified. 

• Liaised with businesses as necessary around the Mobile Testing Unit requirements. 

OTHER 

• Provided advice and support to schools and other settings in relation to Covid-19. 

• Supported multi-agency exercises as required. 

• Support given to Creative Design Team to debrief major events (e.g., Year of Music Event, Halloween 
spooktacular, Christmas lights). 

• Updated EQIA assessment for Council Emergency Planning documents in place to ensure there are fair 
to all those they are designed to protect. 

CORE 
DUTY 

08 P
age 29

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

FL 
FORWARD LOOK 

• Apply the lessons learnt from the response to Covid into the Council’s Emergency and Business 
Continuity Plans and procedures. 

• Assess/monitor the impacts on resilience in relation to inflationary pressures due to 
national/international influences (cost-of-living crisis). 

• Assess how capabilities will be impacted as the organisation and partners recover to a ‘new normal’ 
after Covid-19. 

• Roll out the revised business continuity programme across the organisation.  

• Finalise HVM options project 

• Fully establish protect duty structures and workstreams 

• Continue to strengthen the link between emergency planning, business continuity and cyber. 

• Continue to deliver the EPRR function for Locala. 

• Review risk assessments in-line with updates. 

• Review and update emergency plans in line with annual review periods. 

• Continue to develop the use of Resilience Direct to support information sharing and joint working. 

• Develop and run training and exercise programmes for the Council and partners (e.g. Resilience Direct, 
rest centre activation, EPRR, etc.). 

• Further the roll out of Resilience Direct and its use as a hub for Business Continuity Plan storage. 

• Run a lockdown exercise at one of the key Council buildings in Huddersfield. 

• Complete the 2022 EPRR assurance. 

• Liaise with the Comms Team around the 30 days 30 ways campaign 

• Maintain Evolve support role and rolling out of EVC full training and update workshops. 

• Continue to support the council wide Climate Change adaptation project. 

• Maintain an overview of upcoming CCA changes and ensure council arrangements and procedures are 
kept in line with these. 

• Annual EQIA assurance of plans and arrangements in place. P
age 30

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


 

 

Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WY
NC 

WEST YORKSHIRE/NATIONAL CONTEXT 
• National push towards cyber risk awareness. 

• Align Council risk assessments to new national assessments and revised matrix. 

• Continue as active members of the West Yorkshire Resilience Forum (the Team Chair, and Deputy chair 
4 sub-groups). 

• Continue to plan for undertake the associated preparedness work for operation London Bridge, and 
Operation Forth Bridge.  

• Complete national EPRR assurance. 

• Continue to support the delivery of national ACT training. 

P
age 31

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiHpZuV0YHOAhWsAcAKHUSrCaoQjRwIBw&url=http://www.examiner.co.uk/news/west-yorkshire-news/kirklees-council-ordered-free-up-4927890&psig=AFQjCNFACWG3osCrFYp26FRwC7VJ2le9mg&ust=1469090080774107


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Name of meeting: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 
Date:    Friday 15 July 2022 
 
Title of report:  Report of the Members’ Allowances Independent Review 

Panel (MAIRP) 
  
Purpose of report:  
To recommend Council to approve the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2022/23, that 
takes account of recommendations proposed by the Members’ Allowances Independent 
Review Panel regarding certain allowances.  
 
 
Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or 
to have a significant effect on two or 
more electoral wards?  
 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s 
Forward Plan (key decisions and 
private reports)? 
 

No 
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in 
by Scrutiny? 
 

No 
 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Legal Governance and 
Commissioning? 
 

Rachel Spencer-Henshall 
07.07.22 
 
Eamon Croston 
07.07.22 
 
Julie Muscroft 
07.07.22 
 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Councillor Paul Davies (Corporate) 
 

 
Electoral wards affected:  All 
 
Ward Councillors consulted:   Not applicable 
 
Public or private:     Public 
 
Has GDPR been considered?   Yes, there is no personal data within the 
     report. 
  

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 11

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


1. Summary 
 
The Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel meets annually to consider and 
recommend the Members’ Allowances Scheme to Council having regard to evidence 
received and associated developments that will affect the Scheme. 
 
The Panel have considered the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2022/23 and this 
report captures the outcomes of those considerations and the consequential changes to 
the Scheme as a result. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: As part of this review, the Members’ Allowances Independent Review 
Panel heard evidence from Place Partnership Lead Members relating to their role and 
the Panel’s report makes reference to this role. 
 
At the meeting of Annual Council on 25 May 2022, Council approved the replacement 
of the role of Place Partnership Lead Member with the role of Lead Councillor – Primary 
Care Networks and Local Health Improvement. 
 
2. Information required to take a decision 

 
The MAIRP consider the Members’ Allowances Scheme and make 
recommendations to the Council on certain allowances within the Scheme.   
 
It should be noted that, in its report of June 2017, Growing a stronger local 
democracy, from the ground up, the Kirklees Democracy Commission 
recommended: 
 
The Kirklees Members Allowances Independent Review Panel (MAIRP) should 
consider linking annual changes in the rate of Councillors’ allowances to the pay 
rate for local government officers.  This recommendation was considered, 
acknowledged and accepted by the MAIRP at their meeting in November 2017.  
Since then all considerations in terms of any uplift has had regard to this 
principle. 
 
However, at their meeting on 21 December 2020, to consider the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for 2021/22 it was recommended that a full root and branch 
review should be carried out in the summer of 2021.   
 
This review has now been carried out and the report of the MAIRP is attached at 
Appendix A and Appendix B and puts forward the following recommendations in 
relation to the Basic Allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances: 
 
(i) The current Basic Allowance be increased to £18,000 over a three-year 

period with yearly increases as follows with effect from 1 April 2022: 
 
  1 April 2022 – increase to £15,333 
  1 April 2023 – increase to £16,666 
  1 April 2024 – increase to £18,000 

 
(ii) Special Responsibility Allowances as follows with effect from 1 April 

2022: 
 
  Band A       £26,364 
  Leader of the Council       
  Band A1       £19,772 
  Deputy Leader of the Council      
  Band A2       £12,863 
  Cabinet Member       
  Chair of Overview & Scrutiny 
  Band B       £6,432 
  Scrutiny Panel Lead Member 
  Lead Councillor – Primary Care Networks and  

Page 34



  Local Health Improvement 
  Planning Chair 
  Corporate Governance & Audit Committee Chair 
  Licensing Chair 
  Band C       £11,577 
  Leader of an Opposition Group (16+ Councillors) 
  Band D       £7,719 
  Group Business Manager (16+ Councillors) 
  Leader of an Opposition Group (3-15 Councillors) 
  Band D1       £5,147 
  Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group (16+ Councillors) 
  Group Business Manager (3-15 Councillors) 
  Band E       £3,860 
  Standards Chair 
  Appeals Chair 
  Adoption Panel Member 
  Fostering Panel Member 
  Band E1       £2,572 
  Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group (3-15 Councillors) 
  

The draft Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2022/23 which takes account of the 
recommendations of the MAIRP, is attached at Appendix C. 
 
The additional cost (excluding any abatements) to the overall Scheme should 
the above-mentioned recommendations be agreed and implemented is as 
follows: 
 
Basic Allowance 
 

  1 April 2022 – £91,977 
  1 April 2023 – £91,977 
  1 April 2024 – £92,046 

 
Special Responsibility Allowances 
 
  1 April 2022 - £49,321 
 
  In 2023 and 2024 the rate for Special Responsibility Allowances will 
  be linked to annual changes in the rate of pay for local government 
  officers.   
 
PLEASE NOTE: Further consequential changes to the Members’ Allowances 
Scheme are set out at Section 5 of Appendix A and relate to Travel and 
Subsistence and Information Technology. 
 

3. Implications for the Council 
 

• Working with People 
Not applicable. 

 
• Working with Partners 

Not applicable. 
 

• Place Based Working  
Not applicable. 

 
• Climate Change and Air Quality 

Not applicable. 
 

• Improving outcomes for children 
Not applicable. 
 

Page 35



• Financial Implications for the people living or working in Kirklees 
Not applicable. 
 

• Other (eg Legal/Financial or Human Resources) 
The projected uplift in Basic Allowance of £90k and Special 
Responsibility Allowances of £50k in 2022/23 would be met from 
existing earmarked reserves.  Future annual uplifts of £90k each year 
over the following 2 years for Basic Allowance, would then be 
factored into Council forward budget plans as appropriate. 

 
Do you need an Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)? 

Not required. 
 

4. Consultees and their opinions 
 The Allowances panel have been consulted on the contents of this report and 
 agree that it accurately reflects the outcomes of their discussion. 
 
5. Next steps and timelines 
 

Following consideration by Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, this 
report will be referred for consideration and approval by Council at its meeting 
on 7 September 2022. 
 

6. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 
 That Corporate Governance and Audit Committee: 
 

(i) Notes the recommendations of the Members’ Allowances Independent 
Review Panel (as set out at Appendix A and Appendix B); 

 
 (ii) Considers the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2022/23 (as set out at 
  Appendix C) and recommends to Council the adoption or otherwise or 
  amendment of the Scheme with effect from 1 April 2022. 
 
7. Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 
 

Not applicable. 
 

8. Contact officer  
 

Samantha Lawton 
Head of Governance 
samantha.lawton@kirklees.gov.uk 
Tel: 01484 221000 

 
9. Background Papers and History of Decisions 
 

Report of Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel, July 2021. 
 
10. Service Director responsible  
 
 Julie Muscroft 
 Service Director, Legal Governance and Commissioning 
  

Page 36

mailto:samantha.lawton@kirklees.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 November 2012 

Appendix A  
 
 

Report of The 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kirklees Council 
Members' Allowances 
Independent Review 

Panel 
 

January 2022 
 

Samantha Lawton 
Head of Governance 

Civic Centre 3,  
Huddersfield, HD1 2TG 

01484 221000 

Page 37



1 Panel Membership 

The Members of the Independent Review Panel are as follows:  

Andrew Taylor (Chair) 
Ian Brown  
Chris West  
Lynn Knowles 
Fiona Weston 
 
2 Terms of Reference 
 
The Panel's Terms of Reference are: 
 
(a) To advise the Council on what would be the appropriate level of  

remuneration for Councillors having regard to the: 
 

- Roles Councillors are expected to fulfil 
- Varying roles of different Councillors 
- Practice elsewhere and other Local Authorities. 

 
(b) To consider schemes of Members Allowances for Town and Parish Councils as 

and when required. 
 
(c) To make recommendations and provide advice to the Council on any other 

issues referred to the Panel by regulation or by the Council. 
 
(d) The Council retains its power to remove a discredited Panel Member. 

 
(e) The Panel can appoint its Chair from amongst its Members. 
 
3 Constitutional Issues 
 
(a) Term of Office 
 
It was agreed that the current Panel membership be retained and that all relevant terms 
of office be renewed until December 2021. 
 
(b) Election of Chair of Independent Review Panel 
 
Andrew Taylor was re-elected Chair of the Independent Review Panel. 
 
  

Page 38



4 Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel Report 
 
The report of the Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel, including the 
Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel’s recommendations for the 2022/23 
Members’ Allowances Scheme can be found at Appendix B. 
 
5 Consequential changes to the Scheme 
 
(a) Travel and Subsistence 
 
 Travel and Subsistence rates to be increased as set out in the Members’ 
 Allowances Scheme 2022/23 at Appendix C. 
 
(b) Information Technology 
 
 The Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel recommend that the 
 increase to the Basic Allowance allows Councillors to source and pay for their 
 own broadband contracts and to subscribe to internet-based ink cartridge 
 schemes. 
 
 Full details of these recommendations are set out in the Members’ Allowances 
 Independent Review Panel Report at Appendix B. 
 
Report produced on behalf of the Members Allowances Independent Review Panel by 
Samantha Lawton, Head of Governance, January 2022. 
  

Page 39



Appendix B 
 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES INDEPENDENT REVIEW PANEL REPORT 
 

 January 2022  
  

 
INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

The Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel (MAIRP) was asked by Kirklees 
Metropolitan Council (KMC) to undertake a comprehensive review of the existing 
Allowances Scheme and make recommendations. This request flowed from the 
scheme’s longevity, the impact of incremental changes over the years, KMC’s changes 
to its working practices and arrangements in place, and because of the COVID-19 
pandemic’s impact on KMC’s operations. 
 
The bulk of the review took place in July and November 2021 and involved 18 intensive 
evidence-gathering sessions with, inter alia, council leadership, Cabinet members, 
panel and committee chairs, political Group Business Managers, Ward Councillors, and 
council officers. All meetings were held virtually via Microsoft Teams. The Panel also 
read and considered a substantial number of written submissions and policy papers.  
 
The Panel would like to thank those who met with us, provided evidence, and answered 
our questions with clarity and candour; the Panel also wish to thank Deborah 
Nicholson, Tish Barker, and Samantha Lawton for organising the sessions and 
managing the research process. 
 
At a preliminary discussion, the Panel agreed that the basic principles underlying the 
scheme since its inception remained valid. These principles were that any allowance 
scheme should: 
 

i. recognise the centrality of the Ward Councillor; 

ii. be transparent and easily understand by Councillors, officers, and voters; 

iii. be easily, cost-effectively, and transparently administered; 

iv. recognise the importance of responsibility and not just hours worked;  

v. be developmental in that it identified and rewarded necessary skills and 
encouraged their adoption; and, 

vi. to assist KMC in achieving its strategic and governance objectives. 

 
The Panel noted that KMC had recently undertaken a thorough review of the Ward 
Councillor role profile (RP). This RP was developed in a council-wide process that drew 
on a wide range of perspectives and the resulting RP was approved by the full Council. 
Consequently, the Panel did not think it was either necessary or legitimate for it to 
devote attention to rethinking or revising the Ward Councillor RP. However, where 
recent and proposed changes in governance, contemporary events, and evidence 
received have implications for the Ward Councillor RP, the Panel have noted these 
changes and have made suggestions where we think the RP might be improved. 
 
The Panel’s key lines of enquiry were explored with each group of witnesses and each 
session drew on a common set of questions. These were: 
 

i. In what ways is the Council changing? How will this change impact on, 
and influence, what Councillors do and change what is expected of 
them? 

Page 40



ii. In what ways has the COVID-19 pandemic impacted on how the council 
works? What does this mean for councillor roles? 

iii. What does Place-Based Working (PBW) mean for councillor roles? 

iv. What do these imply for the ways in which Councillors will be supported 
in the future? 

In addition to the above, the Panel were keen to explore the longer-term impact of 
COVID-19 on councillor activities and council operations, and the extent to which 
adaptations consequent on the pandemic (such as the greater role of information 
technology [IT] and the use of virtual meetings for non-formal meetings) ought to 
become permanent features of council operations and how such innovations might 
affect councillor roles. This has implications for the support afforded to Councillors and 
the panel specifically addressed a number of IT-related issues that impact on the 
Allowances Scheme. 
 
In making its recommendations for changes in the allowance scheme (see later), the 
panel has based its recommendations on four sets of evidence: 
 

i. The number of hours devoted by a councillor to his or her tasks. This is, 
of course, complicated by the mix of factors unique to each individual (for 
example, family commitments, full-/part-time or no other employment, 
caring responsibilities), which makes an exact calculation impossible. 

ii. The scale of responsibility inherent in a role. 

iii. The growing complexity of working relationships, of issues, and of 
governance generally. 

iv. The new ways of working, such as PBW, which places substantial new 
demands on Councillors. 

The complexity of these factors and the impossibility of determining the ‘actual’ scale of 
a councillor’s commitment and engagement render it impossible to answer exactly the 
question, ‘what is a councillor worth’? However, the Panel believe that by triangulating 
the extensive evidence the panel gathered, the panel has solid grounds for making the 
recommendations. 
The panel began the detailed part of the report by considering the foundation of the 
scheme: the Ward Councillor profile and allowance. 
 
THE WARD COUNCILLOR 

Our evidence gathering focused on three questions concerning the Ward Councillor’s 
role: 

i. Does the RP accurately capture the duties and responsibilities you are 
expected to fulfil? 

ii. How has/will PBW impact on your activities? 

iii. What changes in working practices introduced as a result of the 
pandemic ought to be continued? 

Our report divides the Ward Councillor’s place in the allowance scheme into two parts: 
the RP and the allowance. 
 
THE WARD COUNCILLOR ROLE PROFILE 

Fundamental to this enquiry is to establish the degree to which the RP captures what 
the Ward Councillor does. Opinion overall was that the RP did provide a reasonable 
description of the role but there was equally unanimous agreement that the RP failed to 
capture the changing scale, scope, and intensity of the Ward Councillor’s role. 

Page 41



 
Some of this is the inevitable consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. So, for 
example, evidence from the Ward Councillors noted that after an initial fall, their total 
casework had increased and was of greater complexity. We explored whether this 
might change as the country returned to normal, but the evidence we received was that 
this was highly unlikely as it appeared that a permanent shift had taken place in the 
voters’ expectations of their Ward Councillor. Councillors were routinely expected to 
respond almost instantly with solutions to problems or otherwise face often virulent 
criticism and abuse. This has been accelerated and amplified by social media, which 
has increased the number of ways a councillor can be contacted and which many 
Councillors choose to monitor regularly – which can be a time-consuming activity for 
some. Many Councillors concluded from this that they were now regarded as de facto 
‘first responders’ who were no longer expected to deal with traditional ward concerns, 
such as pot-holes and refuse collection that might be dealt with by a single phone call, 
but often with complex issues requiring a long-term multi-agency/partnership response. 
As one of our witnesses put it: ‘we are councillors not counsellors’. A legitimate 
response to this might be ‘well, this is just the nature of the role’, which is true, but it 
must be remembered that many, probably most, Councillors have families and jobs, 
and all have a right to a sustainable work–life balance. So, should the allowance 
scheme and RP recognise the well-being of elected members? 
 
The scale, scope and intensity of the Ward Councillor’s role is being dramatically 
increased by KMC’s strategic vision and its efforts to transform governance by PBW. 
Although in the relatively early stage of development (see later), PBW initiatives have 
taken root and were welcomed by all our witnesses. Councillors universally welcomed 
enthusiastically both the ‘[B]ringing of services … closer to the people and putting 
communities and their representatives at the heart of their design and delivery’ and the 
fact that ‘Council Wards sit at the heart … and are the building blocks for our 
developing approach to [PBW].’  
 
A few Councillors felt that PBW was a different way of organising their traditional role 
but many, many more saw its aims and objectives (for example, partnership-building 
and network-creation) as significant changes in how they worked, and all agreed that 
PBW, although welcome, represented a significant growth in the scale, scope, and 
intensity of their role, workload, and responsibilities. The Panel believe this should be 
reflected in the Ward Councillor’s RP and basic allowance. As a matter of principle, the 
Panel strongly advocate that the bulk of any increases in allowances be concentrated 
on the Ward Councillor.  
 
The scheme’s rule (3.5) that ‘No councillor shall receive more than one special 
responsibility allowance’ should be retained. 
 
THE ALLOWANCE FOR WARD DUTIES 

For the year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, the Ward Councillor allowance was 
£14,002, with the total cost of all Ward Councillor allowances being £960,000. The 
current and previous RPs recognised the Ward Councillor’s fundamental importance to 
governance; determination of the amount of the allowance was, and remains, based on 
‘the level of responsibility, time devoted, and expenses incurred in dealing with their 
constituents, political group, and cross-party discussions on a ward basis’. 
 
Evidence from our witnesses on the Basic Allowance for Ward Councillors (BA) was 
unanimous in two respects: 
 

i. The BA does not reflect the scale of work and commitment necessary to 
satisfy the administrative and public expectations of Councillors. 
Councillors acknowledged that public service is integral to their role and 
recognised the councillor role provided rewards other than financial, but 
all felt that the allowance should better reflect and compensate for the 
level of work, scale of responsibilities, the role’s impact on their work–life 
balance, and on councillor health and well-being. If we assume a 37-hour 
working week (which in many cases will be an underestimate) and divide 

Page 42



the current allowance by 52 weeks (i.e. £14,002 ÷ 52 ÷ 37 = hourly rate) 
this produces an hourly rate of £7.88. This is lower than both the national 
minimum wage and the living wage, to which KMC subscribes. 

ii. One of the original aspirations of the allowance scheme was to 
encourage greater diversity in recruitment. The Panel were impressed by 
the quality, youth, and background of many of the Councillors, but 
equally were impressed by evidence that pointed to the current BA acting 
as a serious disincentive to diverse recruitment. Evidence gathered 
indicated that the qualities and attributes to be an effective councillor, 
after expressing an interest in election, were discouraged by the BA. The 
Panel believe it is crucial to emphasise that no one becomes a councillor 
to make a fortune, but that it is eminently reasonable that Councillors 
should receive fair and equitable compensation for carrying out a 
demanding and important role in society. 

 
Recommendation: On the basis of the evidence received, the Panel recommend that 
the Ward Councillor allowance be increased. The Panel recommend increasing the 
allowance to £18,000 per annum. This increase should be phased in over three years in 
equal increments.  The BA should normally be increased by the annual percentage 
increase awarded to officers. 
 
The rationale for the new allowance is to recognise the changing (and expanding) role 
of the Ward Councillor, to cover a Councillor’s increased expenses in relation to 
broadband services and printer cartridges (see later), and to encourage individuals to 
put themselves forward for election. 
 
The Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) 
 
This section of our report is divided into three parts: first, general observations on the 
RPs excluding that of the Ward Councillor; second, observations pertaining to specific 
RPs; and third, the Place Partnership Lead Member (PPLM) RP. The Panel focused on 
the three questions (see p. 2) that were also addressed to Ward Councillors. 
 
General observations on the SRA RPs 
 
The witnesses came to a striking degree of unanimity concerning the various RPs: all 
(with a few exceptions discussed below) believed the that the RPs captured the broad 
range of their activities but, equally, all felt that in some respects they failed to capture 
adequately the role’s demands and responsibilities. The general criticisms made, in no 
particular order, were: 
 

i. SRA RPs generally failed to capture the amount of preparation (reading, 
officer briefings, informal meetings) required for formal meetings or to 
take into account the growing complexity of issues. 

ii. RPs need to recognise the growing significance of regional activities 
(e.g. the West Yorkshire Combined Authority) and cross-boundary 
working (e.g. mental health issues). 

iii. RPs failed to capture the growing significance of creating linkages and 
promoting dialogue between multiple agencies and community groups, 
which is inherently time-consuming. 

iv. Many RPs were thought to be too ‘passive’, failing to recognise the 
necessity of being proactive. 

v. Many RPs were too ‘process’-oriented and failed to give sufficient weight 
to the personal attributes necessary to satisfy a role’s demands. This is 

Page 43



particularly relevant in heavily public-facing (and often highly 
contentious) areas of work with ‘quasi-judicial’ elements (notably 
Planning, Appeals, Licensing and Safety). 

vi. RPs gave little weight to the necessity for extensive handover and 
briefing arrangements, coupled with training and development (these 
take place, but it was felt their importance be explicitly recognised in the 
RPs). The relationship between a role and its skill-set should be made 
clearer and more emphasis placed on member development of these 
skills. 

vii. All RPs should give due emphasis to high public expectations of the 
councillor and the inevitable problems caused by multi-tasking. 

viii. There was a general perception that the RPs should pay due regard to 
maintaining Councillor health and well-being, promoting training and 
development, and succession planning.  

Recommendation: In the light of the evidence received, the Panel recommend that 
KMC undertake, in consultation with elected members and officers, a thorough 
revision of all Role Profiles (including that of the Ward Councillor) to ensure, in so 
far as this is possible, they are fit for purpose and capture a role’s demands. The 
revised Role Profiles should then be approved by the full Council. Role Profiles 
should pay due regard to maintaining health and well-being, promoting training and 
development, and succession planning. 
 

Observations on specific SRA RPs 
 

i. Council Leader. The RP recognises the external facing role of the 
Council Leader but fails to pay sufficient attention to four key aspects of 
the role. First, strategic leadership is more significant than ever and 
depends on extensive networking; second, there is a much higher level 
of Leader involvement in regional matters, which are challenging and 
complex; third, the shift from funding by grant to a competitive funding 
regime places a heightened emphasis on networking and partnership to 
win these funds; and fourth, the Council Leader has a crucial role in 
developing and communicating a strategic vision and assembling 
support behind shared goals.  

ii. Deputy Council Leader. The Panel were surprised at the RP and its 
failure to acknowledge the change in the Deputy Leader’s duties and 
responsibilities. The current role profile seems to define the Deputy 
Leader as ‘more than a Cabinet Member but less than a Leader’ and this 
is clearly inadequate and fails to recognise the Deputy Leader’s role. 

iii. Overview and Scrutiny (O&S). This RP takes no account of O&S outside 
KMC consequent on the growth of the Mayoral and West Yorkshire tier. 
Multi-agency working, increasingly complex issues, and the growth of 
partnership-working poses major questions for O&S. It is highly likely that 
O&S will become more proactive and investigative as a result of these 
changes and that a growing engagement with the public will continue. In 
recent years, pre-decision scrutiny and horizon scanning has increased, 
which means monitoring will assume increased significance. 

iv. Cabinet. The RP needs an explicit reference to working with O&S. It 
requires greater emphasis on the consequences of the growth of cross-
cutting issues and the need to work collaboratively within and outside 
Kirklees. The RP should recognise the Cabinet member’s role in 

Page 44



strategic thinking, involving delivery via multiple partners and agencies. 
Emphasis should be given to the oversight aspect of a Cabinet member, 
especially given the growing significance of regional governance. 

v. Standards. The RP should be broadened away from its current focus on 
internal ethical issues to include the quality of democratic governance 
and culture in Kirklees and also reflect the growing diversity and 
complexity of actors in the policy process. The growth of regional and 
sub-ward working will inevitably, as in the case of O&S, need to be 
reflected in the RP. The findings of the research and consultation being 
undertaken into the council’s code of conduct, with the aim of identifying 
clearer specifications of behaviour, should be include in the RP. 

vi. Corporate Governance and Audit (CG&A). The Panel believe that the RP 
seriously underestimates the complexity of CG&A’s work. CG&A has an 
extremely broad remit and deals with often highly technical matters; it 
also has a significant role in holding the Executive accountable, and the 
chair carries significant responsibilities. The RP ought, as well, to 
recognise the significance of the extensive pre-meeting work and also of 
technical briefings. The RP should recognise the level of knowledge and 
the needs for continuous updating required by the CG&A role. 

 
  

Page 45



The Place Partnership Lead Member (PPLM) 
 
We deal with this RP separately, first because PBW is fundamental to the changes in 
partnership working practices being undertaken by KMC; and second because the RP 
attracted universal views for its perceived failure to capture the PPLM’s role and 
functions. The PPLM currently has an ‘uncertain’ position in the Allowances Scheme 
that reflects both its recent origins (2019) and the adverse impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, which seriously disrupted the programme’s initial development. However, 
the PBW initiative is now up and running, and some projects have been completed and 
others are in development. Lead Members have been in place for some time and 
networks exist, which means that the Panel no longer feel there is insufficient data on 
which to base any recommendation. In preparing our recommendations, we received 
relevant documentation and detailed briefings, and we interviewed six out of the seven 
PPLMs. 
 
The Place Partnership programme and the PPLMs have a crucial role in KMC’s future 
development, which means the PPLM RP plays a foundational role in the future 
governance of KMC, so it was with some concern that the Panel heard about the 
virtually universal dissatisfaction with the RP. The overall view was that the RP 
captured neither the workload nor the scope of the activities involved. To some degree, 
this was perhaps inevitable given the ambitions attached to the project and the 
disruptions caused by COVID-19, which extended the set-up period, and the scheme 
appears to have been working properly for only some six months. However, these are 
not reasons for inaction. 
 
It must be emphasised that all those we spoke to welcomed the Place Partnership 
initiative enthusiastically and were extremely keen and committed to its success. The 
changes envisaged are important – although several Councillors saw this as an 
extension of the previous ward committees – and constitutes a marked increase in the 
scale, complexity, and intensity of councillor work. Our witnesses stressed, in particular, 
the impact of partnership-working, which, first, involved an enormous amount of pre-
work and briefing; second, the emphasis on network and partnership-working, which is 
time-consuming; and third, a significant rise in cross-boundary, including regional, 
activity, which increases complexity. Our witnesses were strongly of the opinion that 
these impacts will only increase, and they emphasised the future significance of 
programme monitoring and evaluation. Projects have long lead times, and networks 
and partnership-working rests on a very large degree of preparatory work and 
engagement from the PPLMs and Ward Councillors generally, who engage in 
increasingly high-intensity work. Our attendees also believed that this way of working 
meant programmes had an inherent tendency to snowball, which places considerable 
pressure on the resources devoted to supporting Councillors. 
 
Recommendation: The dissatisfaction with the RP and the new intensity and 
complexity of work point, the Panel strongly believe, the need for a substantial re-think 
of the RP. We also think that the allowance for the PPLM should be increased (see 
later). The same factors also point, our witnesses believed, to a review of the resources 
provided for supporting Councillors in this work. 
 
Recommendation: That the SRA for the PPLM is increased (see later) and that this 
Role Profile be reviewed periodically in the light of experience and the future 
development of the Place Partnership initiative. 
 
Determining group size 
 
KMC defines a group as being a minimum of two Councillors who self-identify and 
agree to form a group and comply with the council procedure rule requirements; the 
Panel have followed this practice. The issue of group size is a recurring one. This might 
be deemed to demonstrate the Panel’s failure to arrive at a satisfactory solution. 
Alternatively, it might reflect the possibility that there is no solution capable of 
commanding universal satisfaction.  
 
The issue of group size is bedevilled by the fact that individuals’ views are a matter of 
perspective. On the one hand, it is argued that a large group is more difficult to manage 

Page 46



because of competing internal pressures, the problems that flow from coordinating a 
large number of people, and the fact that responsibilities are greater because of a large 
group’s likely dominance of Cabinet positions. On the other hand, many of those whom 
the Panel spoke to argued that it is a fallacy that the burdens in a smaller group are 
less simply as a result of a smaller number of people. Indeed, their argument was that 
smaller groups have greater burdens because of having fewer people amongst which to 
share out the responsibilities. Furthermore, evidence was provided that suggested No 
Overall Control (NOC) and PBW mean that the members of small groups are drawn into 
governing and policy-making, which significantly increases the responsibilities and 
burdens on a small group. The Panel’s difficulty is that both perspectives can be equally 
accurate, making both arguments equally compelling. 
 
Criticism of the current scheme’s formulation concerning group size comes, perhaps 
not surprisingly, primarily (but not exclusively) from the smaller groups. They emphasise 
the consequences of NOC and a radically changing system of governance that means 
small groups have more work per councillor than a large group that can distribute tasks 
and responsibilities among its members. They question whether raw numbers is a 
rational or fair way to distribute resources. A small group that seeks to influence policy 
and strategy significantly must cover all areas of work as well as engage in 
accountability and monitoring of the executive. So, in this view, raw group size bears 
little relationship to workload and represents a case for more resources for small groups 
and, in turn, this means the current group size bands fail to reflect the reality of policy 
and administration, or the Council’s political composition where small groups can, and 
do, play a key role.  
 
The current political composition of the Council is: Labour, 33; Conservative, 19; Liberal 
Democrat, 9; Green, 3; Holme Valley Independents, 3; and Other Independents, 2 
(n=69). We have been told that NOC has often been the political situation in Kirklees. 
NOC existed in 1975–76, 1979–80, 1986–90, 1994–95, 1999–2018, and 2020 to date, 
so of the 48 years of KMC’s existence, 27 years (56%) have been NOC. NOC has been 
the dominant mode of control in the 21st century. This suggests that the allowance 
scheme needs to acknowledge the role of the smaller groups.  
 
The Panel have been persuaded by the evidence that the group size bands and the 
attendant SRAs require attention. Any change in banding and SRAs will inevitably be 
criticised, but the Panel is convinced that the current structure creates an undesirable 
complexity and that there is an overwhelming case for simplification.  

 
Recommendation: That the current group size bands be reduced to two: 3–15 and 
16+. 
 
Recommendation: The 3–15 and 16+ group have SRAs attached to the roles of 
Leader of an Opposition Group, Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group and Group 
Business Manager (see table). 
 

The proposed SRAs are set out below (see later). 
 
The Panel believes its recommendations are fair to all groups and can meet the 
demands of both NOC and majority party control. 
 
  

Page 47



SRAs, banding and the Scheme’s Structure 
 
In developing its proposals on SRAs, banding, and the scheme’s structure the Panel 
assessed and compared the workload associated with each post but the data we 
consulted was concerned solely with formal meetings. The meeting frequency data did 
not include meetings of political group leadership, informal briefings, meetings with 
officers, site visits, and so on; nor does the data include the preparation work 
undertaken by Councillors prior to both formal and informal meetings, so it seriously 
underestimates the actual time committed. With the exception of Scrutiny, panels, and 
Place Partnership Leads, all the posts attracting SRAs are decision-making and any 
decision can be challenged legally. Planning and Licensing and Safety are also 
contentious areas where there is more risk of legal challenge and litigation. 
 
The Panel concluded that there is an urgent need for the SRA structure to be tidied up, 
especially in the case of political Group leadership and management. Our report 
contains proposals designed to achieve this. The Panel also recognises that the 
relationship between SRAs needs to be clarified. We feel that the number of bands 
could be reduced. We feel that the Band C2 (Police and Crime Panel Members) should 
be deleted as this position is not solely part of the Kirklees allowance scheme and not 
wholly determined by KMC. 
 
As a matter of principle the Panel strongly advocate that the bulk of any increase in 
allowances be concentrated on the Ward Councillor allowance. The scheme’s rule (3.5) 
that ‘No councillor shall receive more than one SRA’ should be retained. 
 
In making our recommendations the Panel has been determined to tidy-up and simplify 
the Allowance Scheme. Over the period of the Scheme’s existence there has been 
some proliferation of SRAs but Panel wish to stress that their recommendations have 
been driven by the weight of evidence in each case. 
 
Recommendation: On the basis of the evidence received the Panel recommends the 
following in terms of SRAs, banding and the scheme’s structure: 
  

Page 48



The Revised Allowance Scheme 
 
Post Band  SRA (£s) 
The Executive   
Leader of the Council A 26364 
Deputy Leader of the Council A1 19772 
Cabinet Member A2 12863 
Committee Leads   
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny A2 12863 
Children’s Security B 6432 
Economy and Neighbourhoods B 6432 
Corporate Scrutiny B 6432 
Adult Health and Social Care B 6432 
Lead Councillor – Primary Care 
Networks and Local Health Improvement 

B 6432 

Strategic Planning B 6432 
Planning (Heavy Woollen) B 6432 
Planning (Huddersfield) B 6432 
Corporate Governance and Audit B 6432 
Licensing and Safety B 6432 
Standards E 3860 
Appeals E 3860 
Political Group Management   
Leader of an Opposition Group 16+ C 11577 
Group Business Manager 16+ D 7719 
Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group 
16+ 

D1 5147 

Leader of an Opposition Group 3-15 D 7719 
Group Business Manager 3-15 D1 5147 
Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group 
3-15 

E1 2572 

Panel Members   
Adoption Panel E 3860 
Fostering Panel E 3860 

 
  

Page 49



In the majority of cases the Panel decided not to change the current SRAs. In 
assessing whether or not to change an SRA the Panel asked itself the question: ‘what 
is the evidence that the role has increased significantly in terms of its scale, scope, and 
responsibility?’ In the cases of the Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member it seems 
likely that big changes are in prospect due to factors such as the growth of the West 
Yorkshire Combined Authority and the Panel recognise the direction of change. 
However, the Panel agreed that further evidence was needed to quantify the impact of 
this change and that this was a further reason for a review of RPs to ensure that they 
captured the nature of a task. 
 
The Panel recommend an increase in the SRA for the Chair of Organisation and 
Scrutiny. It is clear that this post has a larger responsibility than that of ordinary scrutiny 
leads. This chair is effectively the head of all scrutiny panels and has specific 
delegations and responsibilities under the Council’s constitution that no other chair 
possesses. The Panel, after taking evidence, felt that this role was significantly 
undervalued.  
 
The Panel were convinced by the evidence presented to us that Licensing and Safety 
were undervalued. We could find no good reason to justify not regarding this committee 
in the same light as other committee hence our recommendation that this SRA matches 
the other committee chairs. 
 
The Panel were persuaded by the evidence presented that the current SRA 
undervalues the role of the Corporate Governance and Audit committee lead member. 
This is an important committee with critical functions that are of legal significance. No 
council function is excluded from this committee’s purview, its work is often highly 
technical, and it plays a role in holding the executive to account and so for these 
reasons the Panel recommend the SRA be increased. 
 
The rationale for the increased SRA for the Place Partnership Lead Member was 
discussed earlier in the paper. At this early stage of Place Based Working this post 
clearly carries a considerable amount of responsibility and we feel that it ought to be 
given parity with other committee lead members. The Panel also wish it to be 
recognised that this role may change as Place Based Working takes root and becomes 
the norm and this may call for a review at a later date. 
 
The Panel were not convinced by the evidence presented that Standards and Appeals 
had the same, or broadly comparable, level of responsibility and workload as other 
committee leads and this warranted locating them in Band E. 
 
Earlier we made it clear that we were persuaded by the evidence we received that the 
SRAs and Allowance Structure for political group management were in need of serious 
attention. We felt that the existing structure was overly complex and did not map onto 
the Council’s political composition. The primary drivers in our deliberations was, first, 
the evidence we received and, second, the need for the Scheme to acknowledge the 
role of, and burden placed upon, smaller political groups. There are inevitably gainers 
and losers in any revision but we feel our proposal recognises different group sizes and 
it simplifies an unwieldy structure.  

Page 50



IT Support 
 
COVID-19 has led to many innovations in working practices and the Panel were keen to 
explore with Councillors which of these (if any) were worth continuing into the post-
COVID world. Many of these innovations focus on the role of IT. This has been a 
growing feature of Councillors’ ways of working for many years, and many changes 
were underway pre-COVID, but the pandemic accelerated some of these changes and 
prompted questions about their permanent role at a time when KMC’s governance is 
undergoing radical change. The Allowances Scheme ought to consider the role of IT. 
To help us, we received a detailed strategy document on IT and we heard evidence in a 
session with KMC’s IT Support Services. In addition, one of our key questions to 
councillors and witnesses sought to explore their perceptions of the current and future 
contribution IT could make in councillor’s work. 
 
The significance of virtual meetings 
 
Councillors welcomed enthusiastically the expanded use of virtual meetings via 
Microsoft Teams and praised the support provided by IT Services in establishing this as 
a common way of working. Opinion was unanimously in favour of continuing virtual 
meetings for briefing sessions with officers or for committee pre-meetings, as this not 
only enabled meetings to be set up at short notice, but also saved Councillors (and 
officers) a great deal of time by obviating the need to travel to and from meetings. 
Regret was expressed that many more formal meetings must now, for legal reasons, be 
held in-person, and some Councillors felt that some of these could be held virtually with 
no loss of public accountability. However, this is not within KMC’s gift.  
 
Some committees are more dependent on real-time meetings requiring face-to-face 
sessions (these included CG&A, Planning, Safety and Licensing, and Appeals) and 
others (for example, O&S) hoped to make greater use of ‘site’ visits in the future. So, for 
some committees, virtual meetings cannot be substituted for in-person meetings. 
 
However, it is clear that there is unanimous support for the continuation of virtual 
meetings and an expansion in their role wherever possible; there was also strong 
support for KMC developing and making permanent ‘blended’ working – a combination 
of virtual and physical meetings – in the future. Councillors believed strongly that this 
would represent a significant gain in terms of efficiency, with no loss of public 
accountability. 
 
Recommendation: The Panel recommend that, as a matter of urgency, KMC explore 
the continuation of virtual meetings and, wherever possible, their increased use. In 
addition, KMC should also explore the development of a ‘blended’ model (virtual + 
formal meetings) of working subject, of course, to legislative requirements. 
 
The provision of IT services 
 
Many of the innovations in working and the above recommendation rest heavily on IT 
support. Our discussion on IT support impinges directly on the Allowances Scheme. 
The IT strategy paper noted the provision of: ‘… additional support to enable all our 
Councillors to become “digital citizens” and continue our democratic processes. The 
successful move of all meetings into an online environment was unprecedented, yet 
Councillors responded very well to the changing environment and now have more 
digital skills and digital independence.’ This, it is argued, provides a solid footing for the 
next stage.  
 
The evidence we received strongly suggests that: 
 

i. The emphasis should be on Councillors selecting the devices they prefer 
rather than their being provided by KMC. The key is connectivity (see 
below) and IT Services declared themselves able to manage a wide 
range of devices effectively.  

Page 51



ii. The current system for distributing print cartridges is labour-intensive and 
therefore expensive. The Panel is persuaded that the system should 
move to internet-based services, with individuals subscribing to cartridge-
replacement schemes. Such a move would require an adjustment in the 
basic allowance. Printer paper would continue to be provided by KMC. 
Individual printer cartridge-replacement schemes will be more cost-
effective as they avoid the cost of stocking a plethora of different 
cartridges and arranging for their piecemeal distribution. 

iii. The Panel believe that it makes more sense for Councillors to negotiate 
their own broadband contracts. The rapid growth of faster broadband 
across Kirklees means that residential contracts (costing around £300 
per year) are more cost-effective  and offer greater flexibility and 
improved connectivity. Home broadband is cheaper as it does not attract 
the business overheads inherent in the current corporate scheme. 

These changes have the overall effect of moving the cost of providing IT on to the 
councillor and in all fairness this shift should be recognised in the basic allowance. Our 
recommendations also depend on the continued provision of the currently high level of 
support provided by IT Services.  
 
IT Services must continue to work closely with Councillors to provide the technology 
services that best fit with their ways of working: a ‘one size fits all’ approach is not 
sustainable in the current environment. IT Services intend to consult widely with 
Councillors on these issues and are well aware that these changes require IT Services 
to ‘take Councillors with them’ and to continue to provide a high level of support. 
 
Recommendation: The Panel are convinced that Councillors will receive a better 
service in terms of quality in relation to cost if they acquire their own broadband service. 
In the case of Councillors currently receiving broadband from IT Services, we 
recommend that this service be continued until the expiry of the current corporate 
contract(s).  
 
Recommendation: The Panel strongly support a move to an individual subscription 
model for the provision of print cartridges. This will be more efficient and cost-effective. 
 
Recommendation: The Panel agree IT services should continue to provide Councillors 
with a Council device but they will continue to support those Councillors who choose to 
purchase their own devices. 
 
Recommendation: The Panel strongly endorse and support IT Service’s intention to 
undertake an extensive consultation and confidence-building exercise with Councillors 
on the issues discussed above. Given the centrality of IT to the proposed new ways of 
working, the Panel believe this should be done expeditiously and with sensitivity. 
 
Banding of Political Groups 
 
The Panel was asked to consider the banding of political groups. The banding would 
include combining ‘fixed’ and ‘sliding scale’ elements and our deliberations also 
benefitted from oral evidence from witnesses on this. The Panel would like to thank the 
witnesses for their positive contribution to the Panel’s deliberations. The Panel thought 
the banding of groups in this way was interesting and well worthy of serious 
consideration but after extensive discussion and debate the Panel are unable to 
recommend this alternative.  
 
The bandings combined a fixed and fluid element which initially seemed attractive as it 
offers a response to, for instance, the ‘cliff edge’, embraces the commonalities of a 
leaders’ responsibilities, and recognises the variation of responsibilities according to 
group size. However, as the Panel deliberated, we identified a number of unexpected 
and unforeseen consequences. 
 

Page 52



First, as the Panel explored the banding of groups in this way it became apparent that 
its implementation would require a radical re-think of virtually the entirety of our 
previous recommendations. If this was likely to result in a significantly better outcome 
such a re-think would be worth doing but the Panel concluded the costs would outweigh 
the benefits. 
 
Second, the introduction of a calculation based on fixed and sliding elements would, the 
Panel felt, introduce a second and inevitably competing method of calculation into the 
Scheme. This would reduce transparency and open the door to competing perspectives 
that the Panel believe would disrupt the scheme. 
 
Third, there were, the Panel, believed no insuperable technical obstacles to introducing 
the alternative, but to do so would inevitably involve substantial start-up costs and 
require considerable changes in the payroll system. Once again, the Panel believe the 
likely benefits of such a change would be outweighed by its costs. 
 
Fourth, the Panel considered that the alternative ran counter to the centrality of the 
Role Profiles in the scheme. These emphasise the centrality of responsibilities and 
skills in the determination of SRAs rather than mechanical and numerical methods that 
tend to militate against giving these elements their due weight. 
 
Fifth, during the evidence sessions we were impressed by the broad range of testimony 
we received that pointed unequivocally in the direction of the Panel’s eventual 
recommendations.  
 
Sixth, the Panel were also impressed by the weight of evidence that described a rapidly 
and dramatically changing Council which, we feel, would be better reflected in the 
allowances scheme by our proposal. 
 
As the Panel noted, any response to an issue such as this will be imperfect and be 
unlikely to command universal acceptance. Notwithstanding, the discussion our 
proposal has stimulated, we remain convinced the recommendations outlined in this 
report offer a reasonable and equitable solution. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The Independent Panel recognise that any recommendations for increases in the 
allowances paid to Councillors will always be controversial. However, the Panel believe 
their report, led by the evidence, presents an irrefutable case for increases in the Basic 
Allowance and a revision of the SRAs. Councillors carry out a hard and necessary 
function for society and do not do so in the expectation of becoming rich, but the Panel 
are of the view that they are entitled to fair and reasonable recompense. Whether our 
recommendations are accepted by KMC is a matter for our democratically elected 
Councillors. 
  

Page 53



The Panel’s Recommendations: 
 

1) Recommendation: On the basis of the evidence received, the Panel 
recommend that the Ward Councillor allowance be increased. The Panel 
recommend increasing the allowance to £18,000 per annum. This increase 
should be phased in over three years in equal increments, following this the BA 
should continue to be increased by the same percentage as the annual 
percentage increase awarded to officers. 

2) Recommendation: In the light of the evidence received, the Panel recommend 
that KMC undertake, in consultation with elected members and officers, a 
thorough revision of all Role Profiles (including that of the Ward Councillor) to 
ensure, in so far as this is possible, they are fit for purpose and capture a role’s 
demands. The revised Role Profiles should then be approved by the full Council. 
Role Profiles should pay due regard to maintaining health and well-being, 
promoting training and development, and succession planning. 

3) Recommendation:  The Panel recommends that SRAs should continue to be 
increased by the same percentage as the annual percentage increase awarded 
to officers. 

4) Recommendation: That the Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) for the 
Place Partnership Lead Member is increased (see table) and that this Role 
Profile be reviewed periodically in the light of experience and the future 
development of the Place Partnership initiative. 

5) Recommendation: That the current group size bands be reduced to two: 3–15 
and 16+ 

6) Recommendation: The 3–15 and 16+ group have SRAs attached to the roles 
of Leader of an Opposition Group, Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group and 
Group Business Manager (see table). 

7) Recommendation: We recommend a revised SRA structure and allowances 
(see table). 

8) Recommendation: The Panel recommend that, as a matter of urgency, KMC 
explore the continuation of virtual meetings and, wherever possible, their 
increased use. In addition, KMC should also explore the development of a 
‘blended’ model (virtual + formal meetings) of working subject, of course, to 
legislative requirements. 

9) Recommendation: The Panel are convinced that Councillors will receive a 
better service in terms of quality in relation to cost if they acquire their own 
broadband service. In the case of Councillors currently receiving broadband 
from IT Services, we recommend that this service be continued until the expiry 
of the current corporate contract(s).  

10) Recommendation: The Panel strongly support a move to an individual 
subscription model for the provision of printer cartridges. This will be more 
efficient and cost-effective. 

11) Recommendation: The Panel agree IT services should continue to provide 
Councillors with a Council device but they will continue to support those 
Councillors who choose to purchase their own devices. 

12) Recommendation: The Panel strongly endorse and support IT Service’s 
intention to undertake an extensive consultation and confidence-building 

Page 54



exercise with Councillors on future IT support. Given the centrality of IT to the 
proposed new ways of working, the Panel believe this should be done 
expeditiously and with sensitivity. 

  

Page 55



          Appendix C 
 
Kirklees Council Members' Allowances Scheme 2022-2023 
 
This Members’ Allowances Scheme is made under the Local Authorities 
(Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 
 
1. The Members’ Allowances Scheme will apply from 1 April 2022 to 31 

March 2023. 
 
2. Basic allowances for ward duties 
 
2.1 The amount allocated per annum to each elected Councillor for ward 

duties is set out as follows for the following three-year period: 
 
 1 April 2022 – £15,333 
 1 April 2023 – £16,666 
 1 April 2024 – £18,000 
 
2.2 The role of Councillor is dynamic and the expectations and 

responsibilities associated with the role are constantly changing.  This is 
an ongoing consideration in determining the basic allowance which 
recognises the level of responsibility, time devoted and expenses 
incurred in dealing with their constituents, political group and cross party 
discussions on a ward basis. 

 
 No additional payment will therefore be made for travel and subsistence 

costs for duties within the Kirklees district. 
 
2.3 Basic allowances will be paid calendar monthly in arrears to each elected 

Councillor in equal monthly instalments. 
 
2.4 Where the term of office of a Councillor begins or ends otherwise than on 

the 1 April 2022 or 31 March 2023 his/her entitlement to the allowance 
will be pro-rata. 

 
3. Special responsibility allowances 
 
3.1 The amounts allocated per annum to Councillors of specific duties, which 

are additional to the basic allowance are:- 
 
  Band A       £26,364 
  Leader of the Council       
  Band A1       £19,772 
  Deputy Leader of the Council      
  Band A2       £12,863 
  Cabinet Member       
  Chair of Overview & Scrutiny 
  Band B       £6,432 
  Scrutiny Panel Lead Member 
  Lead Councillor – Primary Care Networks and  
  Local Health Improvement 
  Planning Chair 
  Corporate Governance & Audit Committee Chair 
  Licensing Chair 
  Band C       £11,577 
  Leader of an Opposition Group (16+ Councillors) 
  Band D       £7,719 
  Group Business Manager (16+ Councillors) 

Page 56



  Leader of an Opposition Group (3-15 Councillors) 
  Band D1       £5,147 
  Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group (16+ Councillors) 
  Group Business Manager (3-15 Councillors) 
  Band E       £3,860 
  Standards Chair 
  Appeals Chair 
  Adoption Panel Member 
  Fostering Panel Member 
  Band E1       £2,572 
  Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group (3-15 Councillors) 
 
 Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny Ad-Hoc Panels will receive £40.22 day 

split into half day sessions (2 x 4 hours) to commence at the start of 
formal meetings to their conclusion.  The Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee will place a time allocation on the work of the 
ad-hoc panel. 

   
3.2 The special responsibility allowance recognises the additional time and 

expenses incurred by those Councillors effectively performing additional 
special responsibilities. 

 
3.3 Special responsibility allowances will be paid calendar monthly in arrears 

to the appropriate Councillor in equal monthly instalments. 
 
3.4 Where the term of office entitling a Councillor to a special responsibility 

allowance begins or ends otherwise than on the 1 April 2022 or 31 March 
2023 his/her entitlement to the allowance will be pro-rata. 

 
3.5 No Councillor shall receive more than one special responsibility 

allowance. 
 
  

Page 57



4. Renunciation of allowances 
 
4.1 A Councillor may, by giving notice in writing to the Service Director – 

Legal, Governance and Commissioning, elect to forego any part of 
his/her entitlement to an allowance payable under this scheme. 

 
5. Travel and subsistence outside the district 
 
5.1 Travel and subsistence allowances for approved duties outside the 

district can be paid only: 
 

* approved duty are those as described in paragraph 8 of the Local 
Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 

* any other duty approved by the body, or any duty of a class so 
approved, for the purpose of, or in connection with, the discharge of 
the functions of the body, or of any of its committees or sub-
committees 

* for approved duties previously authorised by the appropriate body 
(Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee) and 
Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning.  The 
approval must precede the performance of the duty and not be given 
retrospectively. 

 
 Claims for expenses must be made and received by the Service Director 

– Legal, Governance and Commissioning within two months of the 
expense being incurred. 

 
5.2 Attendance at conferences: The Head of Governance has delegated 

powers to determine Councillor attendance at conferences etc. 
 
5.3 Attendance at training and development events:  The council will 

reimburse a Councillor for travel and subsistence costs, at the approved 
rates, for training and development events.  The appropriate Business 
Manager will approve Councillor attendance.  

 
5.4 The council will book accommodation on behalf of Councillors to a 

maximum of the rates given in Appendix 1, subject to availability.  
Councillors requiring overnight accommodation may claim daytime meal 
allowance(s) in the usual way.  

 
5.5 The authority will pay car mileage at HMRC rates and daytime 

subsistence allowances at the same rates determined for officers by the 
National Joint Council for Local Government Officers.   The allowance 
rates are given at Appendix 1. 

 
5.6 The rate of travel by public transport shall not exceed the amount of an 

ordinary fare or any available cheap fare and wherever possible should 
be arranged through Councillor Support to maximise available discounts 
and concessions. 

 
Tickets or receipts must always accompany travel and subsistence 
claims for over £8. 

 
5.7 Councillors’ use of private motor vehicles should demonstrate either a 

substantial saving of the Councillors’ time, or being in the best interests of 
the council. 

 

Page 58



5.8 The rate of travel by taxicab will not normally exceed the fare for travel by 
appropriate public transport.  In cases of urgency or where no public 
transport is reasonably available, the council will reimburse the amount of 
the actual fare and any reasonable gratuity.   Taxi receipts more than £8 
must support the claim. 

 
5.9 Travel by any other hired vehicle is limited to the rate applicable had the 

vehicle belonged to the member who hired it unless prior approval to the 
actual cost of hiring. 

 
5.10 The rate for travel by air should not exceed the rate applicable to travel 

by any appropriate alternative means of transport together with the 
equivalent saving in subsistence allowance. 

 
 Where the saving in time is so substantial as to justify payment of the fare 

for air travel the amount paid will not exceed:- 
 

(i) the ordinary fare or any cheap fare, or 
(ii) where no such service is available or in case of urgency the fare 

actually paid by the Councillor. 
 

6. Pensions 
 
 With effect from 1 April 2014, any Councillor who is not an active member 

of the Councillors pension scheme will no longer have access to the 
pension scheme.  Councillors who are currently contributing to the 
pension scheme will only be allowed to remain in it, until the end of their 
current term in office.   

 
 Councillors elected after April 2014 will not be entitled to access the 

pension scheme. 
 
7. Parental Leave Policy 
  
 The Policy is set out at Appendix 2.  
 
8. Dependants’ carers’ allowance 
 
 Councillors who need to engage carers to look after dependants whilst 

undertaking duties specified in regulation 7 of the Local Authorities 
(Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 may receive a 
carers’ allowance.  The criteria are given at Appendix 3. 

 
 
9. Support for a Councillor with a disability 
 
 Even though local Councillors are not explicitly covered by the Disability 

Discrimination Act Part II (employment provisions), it is an expectation on 
councils that they will make every reasonable effort to meet the individual 
needs of disabled Councillors.  The council will provide support for 
disabled Councillors, where appropriate, by actively discussing an 
individual’s needs and putting in place the necessary support 
mechanisms wherever practicable. 

 
10. Information technology 
 Page 59



 Each Councillor is offered a PC or laptop to be used in their homes and a 
mobile phone to assist them in the discharge their functions as a 
Councillor.  Use of a mobile phone abroad is restricted to Council 
business only and Councillors are encouraged to connect to wifi 
wherever possible. 

 
11. Publicity 
 
11.1 The regulations place certain duties on local authorities in connection 

with publicising the recommendations made by their independent 
remuneration panel, their scheme of allowances and the actual 
allowances paid to Councillors in any given year: 

 
 The regulations require, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end 
 of a year to which the scheme relates, that local authorities must make 
 arrangements for the publication in their area of the total sum paid by it to 
 each recipient, in respect of each of the following: 

 
Basic allowance 
Special responsibility allowance 
Dependants’ carers’ allowance 
Travelling and subsistence allowance 

 
12. Sickness and holiday 
 
 The scheme recognises the right of Councillors to holiday and entitlement 

to sickness absence. 
 
 An entitlement is made for 28 days of holiday.  During periods of sickness 

a Councillor is not expected to make up any hours lost as a result of that 
illness. 

 
13. Suspension of Allowance 
 

Where a Member, since election has been convicted of any offence and 
has had passed on them a sentence of imprisonment (whether 
suspended or not) for a period of not less than three months without the 
option of a fine, the Council shall suspend any part of any allowance 
payable from the date of sentence. Such suspension shall remain in force 
until such time as section 80 of the Local Government Act 1972 
(disqualification for election and holding office as member of a local 
authority) takes effect.  
 
 
 

14. Education appeals panel members 
 
 Members of Education Appeals Panels (who are not elected Councillors 

of Kirklees Council), will receive an allowance of £119 for a full day 
meeting and £68 for meetings less than four hours.  Periods of 
adjournment will not be included in the allowance payment. 

 
 This allowance will be linked to the increase in pay for local government 

officers. 
 
  Page 60



          APPENDIX 1 
 
Travel and subsistence rates from 1 April 2022 (for approved duties performed outside 
Kirklees only) 
 
1. Motor mileage rates 
 

Car 
First 10,000 business miles in the tax year:       45p per mile 
Each business mile over 10,000 in the tax year:       25p per mile 
 

 Bicycle or other non-motorised forms of transport:      20p per mile 
 

Motor cycle (for journeys less than 10,000 miles per year):   24p per mile 
  

Passenger supplements: The supplement remains unchanged; an increase in the 
above rates by 5p per person per mile not exceeding four passengers. 
 
(Subject to change by HMRC) 
 
 Members of the council shall be entitled to an official parking permit for use when 
undertaking official council duties and otherwise used in accordance with the rules 
relating to their use, and specifically to take account of the contribution to parking 
permits in line with any residents charge as agreed by Council on 19 February 2014. 
 

2. Day subsistence 
 Breakfast allowance       £8.61 
 (more than 3 hours away from normal place of residence 
 before 11.00 a.m.) 
 
 Lunch allowance       £11.87 
 (more than 3 hours away from normal place of residence 
 to include the period 12.00 noon - 2.00 p.m.) 
 
 Tea allowance        £4.66 
 (more than 3 hours away from normal place of residence 
 to include the period 3.00 p.m. - 6.00 p.m.) 
 
 Evening meal allowance      £14.75 
 (more than 3 hours away from normal place of residence 
 ending after 7.00 p.m.) 
 
3. Overnight accommodation costs up to: 
 London/LGA annual conference      £150.00 
 Outside London        £120.00 
 (maximum room/bed-breakfast rates per person per night, but subject to availability) 
 
4. Meals on trains 
 Where main meals (i.e. breakfast, lunch or dinner) are taken on trains during a 

period for which there is an entitlement for a day subsistence allowance, the reasonable 
cost of meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full.  This reimbursement would 
replace the entitlement to the day subsistence allowance for the appropriate meal 
period.  Councillors are asked to submit receipts for meals when claiming. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          APPENDIX 2 
 
Parental Leave Policy  
 

Page 61



Introduction 
 

This Policy sets out Members’ entitlement to maternity, paternity, shared 
parental and adoption leave and relevant allowances. 
 
The objective of the policy is to ensure that insofar as possible Members are 
able to take appropriate leave at the time of birth or adoption, that both parents 
are able to take leave, and that reasonable and adequate arrangements are in 
place to provide cover for portfolio-holders and others in receipt of Special 
Responsibility Allowances (SRA) during any period of leave taken.  
 
Improved provision for new parents will contribute towards increasing the 
diversity of experience, age and background of local authority Councillors. It will 
also assist with retaining experienced Councillors – particularly women – and 
making public office more accessible to individuals who might otherwise feel 
excluded from it. 
 
There is at present no legal right to parental leave of any kind for people in 
elected public office. This applies to MPs as well as Councillors, and has been 
the subject of lengthy debate. These policies can therefore only currently be 
implemented on a voluntary basis. Discussions are ongoing about changing the 
law to enable compulsory provision.  
 
Legal advice has been taken on these policies, and they conform with current 
requirements. 
 
1. Leave Periods 
 
1.1 Members giving birth are entitled to up to 52 weeks maternity leave. 
 
1.2 Where the birth is premature the leave will commence the day after the 
birth takes place. The Member is entitled to take up to 52 weeks maternity 
leave.  
 
1.3 If your baby is born prematurely and you have already started your 
maternity leave, there is the option for you to request extended leave at the end 
of the maternity leave. 
 
1.4 Members shall be entitled to take a minimum of 2 weeks paternity leave if 
they are the biological father or nominated carer of their partner/spouse 
following the birth of their child(ren). 
 
1.5 A Member who has made Shared Parental Leave arrangements through 
their employment is requested to advise the Council of these at the earliest 
possible opportunity. Every effort will be made to replicate such arrangements in 
terms of leave from Council. 
 
1.6 Where both parents are Members leave may be shared up to a maximum 
of 50 weeks. Special and exceptional arrangements may be made in cases of 
prematurity. 
 
1.7 A Member who adopts a child through an approved adoption agency 
shall be entitled to up to 52 weeks adoption leave. 
 
1.8 Any Member who takes maternity, shared parental or adoption leave 
retains their legal duty under the Local Government Act 1972 to attend a 
meeting of the Council within a six month period unless the Council Meeting 

Page 62



agrees to an extended leave of absence prior to the expiration of that six month 
period. 
 
1.9 Any Member intending to take maternity, paternity, shared parental or 
adoption leave will be responsible for ensuring that they comply with the 
relevant notice requirements of the Council, both in terms of the point at which 
the leave starts and the point at which they return. 
 
1.10 Any member taking leave should ensure that they respond to reasonable 
requests for information as promptly as possible, and that they keep officers and 
colleagues informed and updated in relation to intended dates of return and 
requests for extension of leave. 
 
2. Basic Allowance 

 
2.1 All Members will receive: 
 

• 6 weeks at 90% of the Basic Allowance. 
• 33 weeks at half the Basic Allowance plus the equivalent weekly amount 

paid of Statutory Maternity/Adoption pay. 

 
3. Special Responsibility Allowances 

 
3.1 Members entitled to a Special Responsibility Allowance whilst on 
Maternity, Paternity, Shared Parental or Adoption Leave will receive: 
 

• 6 weeks at 90% of the Special Responsibility Allowance. 
• 33 weeks at half the Special Responsibility Allowance.  

 
3.2 Where a replacement is appointed to cover the period of absence that 
person shall receive an SRA on a pro rata basis for the period of the temporary 
appointment. 

 
3.3 The payment of Special Responsibility Allowances, whether to the 
primary SRA holder or a replacement, during a period of maternity, paternity, 
shared parental or adoption leave shall continue for a period of 39 weeks, or 
until the date of the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the date when 
the member taking leave is up for election (whichever is soonest).  

 
3.4 Should a Member appointed to replace the member on maternity, 
paternity, shared parental or adoption leave already hold a remunerated 
position, the ordinary rules relating to payment of more than one Special 
Responsibility Allowances shall apply. 
 
3.5 Unless the Member taking leave is removed from their post at an Annual 
General Meeting of the Council whilst on leave, or unless the Party to which 
they belong loses control of the Council during their leave period, they shall 
return at the end of their leave period to the same post, or to an alternative post 
with equivalent status and remuneration which they held before the leave 
began. 
 
4. Resigning from Office and Elections 
 
4.1 If a Member decides not to return at the end of their maternity, paternity, 
shared parental or adoption leave they must notify the Council at the earliest 
possible opportunity. If a Member decides not to return or does not return for 33 

Page 63



weeks, The Council is entitled to claim back the 33 weeks allowance paid at 
50%. If a Member fails to return for a full 33 weeks a proportion of the allowance 
will be claimed back. 
 
4.2 If an election is held during the Member’s maternity, paternity, shared 
parental or adoption leave and they are not re-elected, or decide not to stand for 
re-election see point 4.1. 
 

  

Page 64



APPENDIX 3 
 

Kirklees Council 
 

COUNCILLORS’  ALLOWANCES 
 

Criteria for dependants' carers' allowance 
 
 
1. Councillors who care for children or dependants can claim a carer's 

allowance paid at the rate of the national minimum wage for age 21 and 
above (currently £9.18 per hour), subject to paragraph 3 below. 

 
2. Payment is claimable in respect of children aged 14 years or under.  In 

respect of dependant relatives, payment is claimable subject to written 
medical or social work evidence. 

 
3. The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee will determine any 

application by a Councillor on the grounds of special circumstances for 
payment of dependants’ carers’ allowance at a higher rate than that of 
the national minimum wage for age 21 and above. 

 
4. The carer must not be a member of the same household. 
 
5. Councillors should submit their claims, using a claim form and supported 

by receipts and, if applicable, declare any other care payment received 
from another agency, to the Councillors’ Allowances section each 
calendar month in arrears. 

 
6. Councillors can only claim for the carers' allowance in respect of 

expenses of arranging for care of their children or dependants 
necessarily incurred for attendance at meetings and performance of 
duties specified in the regulations, and any other duties approved by the 
Council including training sessions held within the induction period 
following an election.  Approved duties do not include meetings with 
officers and constituents and attendance at political group 
meetings. 

 
7. Any allegations of abuse of the scheme will be investigated through the 

Council’s Standards process. 
 
8. The dependants' carers' allowance is subject to annual review. 

 
 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



                                             

         1 
 

                                 
 
Name of meeting:  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE  
Date:                       15 JULY 2022  
Title of report:        QUARTERLY REPORT OF INTERNAL AUDIT Q1 2022/23  
                                APRIL 2022 TO JUNE 2022  
 
Purpose of report.  
To provide information about internal audit work in quarter 1 of 2022/23 
 
Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?  

not applicable 
 
. 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports?)  

not applicable 
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

not applicable 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Finance IT and Transactional Services? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Legal Governance and Commissioning 
Support? 

not applicable 
 
 
not applicable 
 
 
 

Cabinet member portfolio not applicable  

 
Electoral wards affected:  All 
 
Ward councillors consulted: None 
 
Public or private: Public with a private appendix  
 
The appendix to this report is recommended for consideration in private because the 
information contained in it is exempt information within part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 namely that the report contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information).  The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information and providing greater openness in the 
Council’s decision making. 
 
Have you considered GDPR?   Yes  
 
1. Summary  
 
1.1 This report sets out the activities of Internal Audit in the first quarter of 2022/23. 

 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 12

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


                                             

         2 
 

1.2 The report contains information about 15 audits and one investigation just over half of 
which commenced during 2021/22(the rest relate to the 2022/23 planned work). The 
investigation related to allegations about contract allocations, whilst the routine audits 
included 8 schools, one follow up audits relating to markets income, and planning (all 
positive assurances). There were adverse findings in aspects of the management of 
pool cars, school catering finances and into a review of modern slavery arrangements.  

1.3 Internal Audit also continued with its activity to support several governance areas and 
has reviewed certain grants and payment regimes, 

1.4 Internal Audit now looks after the councils Fraud Investigation Team. There were 37 
referrals during this period, mainly related to blue badge fraud, but the bulk of time is 
spent investigating right to buy and other tenancy related fraud. Investigation work 
related to covid business grants continue to occupy time spent by the team. 

1.5 It was agreed at March 2018 Council that this committee consider any surveillance   
activities under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. There are none this 
quarter. 

 
2. Information required to take a decision 
2.1      The detail of the audit work performed this quarter is contained within the private 

Appendix. 
 

3. Implications for the Council 
 

3.1 Working with People – None directly 
3.2 Working with Partners – None directly 
3.3 Place Based Working – None directly 
3.4 Improving outcomes for children– None directly 
3.5 Climate change and air quality- None directly 
3.6 Impact on the finances of local residents- None directly 
3.7 Other (e.g., Legal/Financial or Human Resources)- Although each of the sub 

categorisations above suggest no direct implications, the work of internal audit covers 
all aspects of the Council’s operations, including elements of the above, either 
specifically, indirectly or on a commissioned basis. The main issues relate to those 
areas highlighted above- where there are risks associated with basic processing 
arrangements and delivering sound governance and control. 

 
4.       Consultees and their opinions 

 
           There are no consultees to this report although heads of service/directors are 

involved in and respond to individual pieces of work 
 
 
5.        Next steps and timelines 
 
5.1 To consider if any additional activity is sought. (Limited assurance audit outcomes are 

routinely followed up) 
 
6. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 
6.1      Members are asked to note the Internal Audit Quarterly Report and determine if any 

further action is sought on any matter identified. 
6.2      Members are also asked to note that there has been no Regulation of Investigatory     

Powers Act activity during the period quarter 1 2022/23.  

Page 68



                                             

         3 
 

 
7. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations 
           Not applicable 

 
8. Contact officer  
           Martin Dearnley, Head of Risk & Internal Audit (01484 221000 x73672) 

 
9. Background Papers and History of Decisions 
           Previous Quarterly Reports, Audit Plan, and confidential appendix.    

 
10. Service Director responsible   
           Not applicable 
 

 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Declarations of Interest
	9 Proposed revisions to the terms of reference for the Kirklees Health & Wellbeing Board (Reference to Council)
	Appendix 1 DRAFT HWBB revised Terms of Reference 2022-23 (original with tracked changes)
	1. Membership
	2. Terms of Reference
	3. Voting Rights
	4. Substitute Members
	5. Quorum

	Appendix 2 DRAFT HWBB revised Terms of Reference 2022-23 (proposed new version)

	10 Corporate Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Annual Report
	2021-22 Corporate EP and BC 12 Monthly Report

	11 Report of the Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel (Reference to Council)
	Appendix A
	1 Panel Membership
	2 Terms of Reference
	3 Constitutional Issues
	(b) Election of Chair of Independent Review Panel
	4 Members’ Allowances Independent Review Panel Report
	Introduction and background
	The Ward Councillor
	The Ward Councillor ROLE PROFILE
	The allowance for ward duties

	12 Quarterly Report of Internal Audit Q1 2022/23 April 2022 TO June 2022
	14 Quarterly Report of Internal Audit Q1 2022/23 April 2022 TO June 2022

